



D

MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARUS A



	REPORT DOCU	MENTATION	PAGE		
EPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION		16. RESTRICTIVE	MARKINGS	·	
		3 DISTRIBUTION	AVAILABILITY	OF REPORT	
ECLASSIFICATION / DOWNGRADING SCHED	ULE	Approved unlimited	for public re	lease; distrib	oution
FORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUM	ER(S)	5. MONITORING	ORGANIZATION	REPORT NUMB	ER(S)
IAME OF PERFORMING ORGANIZATION	6b. OFFICE SYMBOL (If applicable)	7a. NAME OF M	ONITORING OR	SANIZATION	
Naval Postgraduate School	63	Naval Pos	tgraduate Sc	hool	
DDRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code)		7b. ADDRESS (Ci	ry, State, and Z	IF Code)	
Monterey, California 93943-500)	Monterey	California 9	3943-5000	
ME OF FUNDING / SPONSORING	8b. OFFICE SYMBOL (If applicable)	9. PROCUREMEN	T INSTRUMENT	IDENTIFICATION	NUMBER
DRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code)	_L	10 SOURCE OF	UNDING NUME	IERS	
		PROGRAM	PROJECT	TASK	WORK UNIT
LE (Include Security Classification) FFECTS OF STORM-RELATE ROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL RSONAL AUTHOR(S) 'illiams, Brian J. YPE OF REPORT 13b TIME 13b TIME	D PARAMETERS	ON THE ACCI	JRACY OF	THE NEST	ED
ITLE (Include Security Classification) EFFECTS OF STORM-RELATE TROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL ERSONAL AUTHOR(S) Williams, Brian J. TYPE OF REPORT Master's Thesis UPPLEMENTARY NOTATION	D PARAMETERS	ON THE ACCI	JRACY OF	THE NESTR	ED GE COUNT 108
ITLE (Include Security Classification) EFFECTS OF STORM-RELATE TROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL ERSONAL AUTHOR(S) Williams, Brian J. TYPE OF REPORT Master'S Thesis UPPLEMENTARY NOTATION COSATI CODES ELD GROUP SUB-GROUP	D PARAMETERS	(Continue on reversion forecasting, forecast	JRACY OF	THE NEST THE NEST h. Day) 15 PA ind identify by statistics, Ch ror, along-tr	ED GE COUNT 108 block number/ LIPER, typhoons ack error; NTCM
ITLE (Include Security Classification) EFFECTS OF STORM-RELATE TROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL ERSONAL AUTHOR(S) Williams, Brian J. TYPE OF REPORT Master's Thesis UPPLEMENTARY NOTATION COSATI CODES ELD GROUP SUB-GROUP BSTRACT (Continue on reverse if necessar	D PARAMETERS	(Continue on revers forecasting, for ical cyclones, cr	JRACY OF	THE NESTR	ED GE COUNT 108 block number) EIPER, typhoons ack error; NTCM Tricscs.
TITLE (Include Security Classification) EFFECTS OF STORM-RELATE TROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL PERSONAL AUTHOR(S) Williams, Brian J. TYPE OF REPORT Master's Thesis SUPPLEMENTARY NOTATION COSATI CODES FELD GROUP SUB-GROUP SUB-GROUP SUB-GROUP SUB-GROUP SUB-GROUP The performance of the N the western North Pacific du parameters: intensity, 12-h ch to aid the operational forecast parameters at the forecast tim (about 180 in each) and the f forecast error and systematic (components are computed rela system (M) that assesses pena accuracy of the NTCM and C NTCM has a slow bias, espe better for storms with initial	D PARAMETERS OVERED TO TO TO TO Tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone tropical cyclone tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone tropical cyclone t	(Continue on reverse 14 DATE OF REPC 1986 March (Continue on reverse forecasting; for ical cyclones; ci number) clone Model (N is evaluated wi ititude, longitud when to use the ed parameters a ited in terms of ial) error. Cross ogy and PERsis casts in incorre- rithin the subsati hrough 36-h fo 3 ^c N and initia	JRACY OF JRACY OF Matter (Year, Month recast error ross-track error ross-track error to and size. To NTCM bas re divided in the mean for -track (CT) a tence (CLIP ct terciles is nples. For to recast period l longitudes	THE NESTR h. Day) 15 PA and identify by statistics, Ch tor, along-tr 42 track form o five storm his study is ied on storm his study is ied on storm to three sub orecast error and along-track. A used to com he entire san ds. It also p west of 129	ED GE COUNT 108 block number/ LIPER, typhoons ack error; NTCM Trests ecasts in n-related intended n-related intended n-related samples , median ack (AT) a scoring inpare the nple, the performs E. For
The performance of the N the western North Pacific du parameters at the forecast time (about 180 in each) and the f forecast error and systematic (components are computed rela system (M) that assesses pen accuracy of the NTCM and C NTCM has a slow bias, espe better for storms with initial	D PARAMETERS OVERED TO TO TO Topical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone tropical cyclone tropical cyclone recurvature, tropical cyclone tropical cyclone tropic	(Continue on reverse 14 DATE OF REPC 1986 March (Continue on reverse forecasting, for ical cyclones, cri number) clone Model (N is evaluated wi ititude, longitud then to use the ed parameters a ited in terms of al) error. Cross ogy and PERsis casts in incorre- ithin the subsat hrough 36-h fo 3 ^c N and initia	JRACY OF JRACY OF JRT (Year, Month recast error ross-track error ross-track error to and size. T NTCM bas re divided in the mean for the mean for the mean for tence (CLIP ct terciles is nples. For t recast perior longitudes	THE NESTR h. Day) 15 PA and identify by statistics, CF for, along-tr 42 track form o five storm his study is ied on storm his study is his study i	ED GE COUNT 108 block number/ LIPER, typhoons ack error; NTCM Trests ecasts in h-related intended h-related intended h-related samples , median ack (AT) A scoring inpare the nple, the performs E. For

CALCULATE STATE

UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE (Then Date Entered

Block 19 (continued)

very large storms, the NTCM forecasts have both left-of-track and westward biases which indicate problems of the NTCM in predicting recurvature of such systems. The NTCM (which has a 60-kt bogus) forecasts for storms with initial intensities between 50 and 75 kt have much lower CT/AT M scores and smaller forecast errors than the subsamples with initial intensities less than 50 kt or greater than 75 kt.

2

Date

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

Effects of Storm-related Parameters on the Accuracy of the Nested Tropical Cyclone Model

by

Brian J. Williams Lieutenant, United States Navy B.A., University of Washington, 1979

Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN METEOROLOGY AND OCEANOGRAPHY

from the

NAVAL POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL March 1986

and the second second francis and the

Ŀ

Author:	Brian J. Williams	
Approved by:	Russell L. Elsberry, Thesis Advisor	
	J. CL. Chan, Co-Advisor	
	Robert J. Renard, Chairman, Department of Meteorology	4Q.
	John N. Dyer, Dean of Science and Engineering	Accession For Pris and I Drie T
		Unarmos de la
	3 (OUALITY INSFECTED 3	Distribution/ Availability Codes Mult Aud/or Dist Special
		A-1 (A)

and the second and the second and the second s

ABSTRACT

and the second states and the second states and the second

PRESS NEW DAY

The performance of the Nested Tropical Cyclone Model (NTCM) for 542 track forecasts in the western North Pacific during 1981-1983 is evaluated with respect to five storm-related parameters: intensity, 12-h change in intensity, latitude, longitude and size. This study is intended to aid the operational forecaster in deciding when to use the NTCM based on storm-related parameters at the forecast time. The storm-related parameters are divided into three subsamples (about 180 in each) and the forecasts are evaluated in terms of the mean forecast error, median forecast error and systematic (zonal and meridional) error. Cross-track (CT) and along-track (AT) components are computed relative to a CLImatology and PERsistence (CLIPER) track. A scoring system (M) that assesses penalty points for forecasts in incorrect terciles is used to compare the accuracy of the NTCM and CLIPER forecasts within the subsamples. For the entire sample, the NTCM has a slow bias, especially at the 12- through 36-h forecast periods. It also performs better for storms with initial latitudes south of 13° N and initial longitudes west of 129° E. For very large storms, the NTCM forecasts have both left-of-track and westward biases which indicate problems of the NTCM in predicting recurvature of such systems. The NTCM (which has a 60-kt bogus) forecasts for storms with initial intensities between 50 and 75 kt have much lower CT/AT M scores and smaller forecast errors than the subsamples with initial intensities less than 50 kt or greater than 75 kt.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	INTRODUCTION	10
II.	THE NESTED TROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL	13
III.	THE DATA SET	. 15
	A. NTCM, CLIPER AND BEST TRACK POSITIONS	15
	B. STORM-RELATED PARAMETERS	16
IV	ERROR STATISTICS	23
	A. MEAN AND MEDIAN FORECAST ERRORS	23
	B. SYSTEMATIC ERRORS	24
	C. CROSS-TRACK AND ALONG-TRACK ERROR COMPONENTS	24
	D. CONTINGENCY TABLES, CLASS ERRORS AND M SCORES	34
V.	RESULTS	39
	A. TOTAL SAMPLE STATISTICS	39
	B. LATITUDE EFFECTS	41
	C. LONGITUDE EFFECTS	. 47
	D. INTENSITY EFFECTS	52
	E. PAST 12-HOUR INTENSITY CHANGE EFFECTS	. 58
	F. SIZE EFFECTS	63
VI.	CONCLUSIONS	70
AP	PENDIX: CONTINGENCY TABLES AND PERCENTAGE OF CLASS ERROR TABLES	73
LI	ST OF REFERENCES	. 104
IN	ITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST	106

LIST OF TABLES

andras areasara harranan buutaraa A

Sec. 10⁷ 1

11 (N) (N)

1. [·]	Means and standard deviations of 24, 48 and 72 h CT and AT error components for a sample of best track positions	26
2a.	Cross-track contingency tables, percentage of class errors and M scores	. 35
2b.	As in Table 2a, except for along track	36
3.	NTCM total sample (n=542) percent class errors, M scores, systematic, mean and median forecast errors	39
4.	CLIPER systematic, mean and median forecast errors for the total sample	. 40
5.	Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM stratified by latitude	43
6.	Mean, median and systematic errors for NTCM stratified by latitude	44
7.	As in Table 6 except for CLIPER	45
8.	Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM stratified by longitude	. 48
9.	Mean median, and systematic errors for NTCM stratified by longitude	. 49
10.	As in Table 9 except for CLIPER	50
11.	Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM stratified by intensity	. 53
12.	Mean median, and systematic errors for NTCM stratified by intensity	. 54
13.	As in Table 12 except for CLIPER	. 55
14.	Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM stratified by past 12-h intensity change	. 59
15.	Mean median, and systematic errors for NTCM stratified by past 12-h intensity change	. 60
16.	As in Table 15 except for CLIPER	61
17.	Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM stratified by size	64
18.	Mean median, and systematic errors for NTCM stratified by size	65
19.	As in Table 18 except for CLIPER	66

A-1.	Cross-track contingency tables, percent class error tables, and M scores for 24-h NTCM forecasts stratified by latitude
A-2.	As in A-1, except for 48 h
A-3.	As in A-1, except for 72 h
A-4.	As in A-1, except for along-track 24 h77
A-5.	As in A-4, except for 48 h
А-б.	As in A-4, except for 72 h
A-7.	As in A-1, except for cross-track 24 h stratified by longitude80
A-8.	As in A-7, except for 48 h
A-9.	As in A-7, except for 72 h
A-10.	As in A-7, except for along-track 24 h
A-11 .	As in A-10, except for 48 h
A-12.	As in A-10, except for 72 h 85
A-13.	As in A-1, except for cross-track 24 h stratified by intensity
A-14.	As in A-13, except for 48 h 87
A-15.	As in A-13, except for 72 h 88
A-16.	As in A-13, except for along track 24 h 89
A-17.	As in A-16, except for 48 h 90
A-18.	As in A-16, except for 72 h
A-19.	As in A-1, except for stratified by past 12-h intensity change92
A-20.	As in A-19, except for 48 h
A-21.	As in A-19, except for 72 h
A-22.	As in A-19, except for along-track 24 h
A-23.	As in A-22, except for 48 h
A-24.	As in A-22, except for 72 h 97
A-25.	As in A-1, except for cross track 24 h stratified by size
A-26.	As in A-25, except for 48 h 99
A-27.	As in A-25, except for 72 h 100
A-28.	As in A-25, except for along-track 24 h 101
A-29.	As in A-28, except for 48 h 102
A-30.	As in A-28, except for 72 h 103

Archight

*535454

LIST OF FIGURES

1 a .	Distribution of initial latitudes with tercile cutpoints	
1 b .	As in Fig. 1a, except for initial longitudes	19
1c.	As in Fig. 1a, except for initial intensities (kt)	20
1d.	As in Fig. 1a, except for previous 12-h intensity change (kt)	
1 e .	As in Fig. 1a, except for radii of 30-kt winds (n.mi)	22
2.	Definition of forecast and systematic error components	23
3.	Definition of cross-track and along-track error components	25
4a.	Distribution of best track 24 h CT error components	27
4b.	Distribution of best track 48 h CT error components	
4c.	Distribution of best track 72 h CT error components	29
5a.	Distribution of best track 24 h AT error components	
5b.	Distribution of best track 48 h AT error components	
5c.	Distribution of best track 72 h AT error components	
6.	Locations of latitude and longitude cutpoints in the western North Paci	i fic 42

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

ファス ファー・シー

I wish to express my gratitude and appreciation to the following people who provided encouragement, guidance and assistance throughout this study. My wife Linda, whose love and patience were uplifting influences that dampened the frustrations and setbacks that are inevitable in such a project. Professor Russell Elsberry, who conceived the project and gave outstanding guidance, counseling and assistance essential to its completion. Dr. Johnny Chan, who reviewed the manuscript and provided sage advice on both the content and form of my writing. Mr. Jim Peak, who assisted in the writing of the computer code required to compile the error statistics. I also wish to thank Dr. Ted Tsui and Mr. Michael Fiorino who provided the CLIPER and NTCM forecast data, and Mr. Charles Leonard who manually entered the radius of 30-kt winds into the computer data base from the JTWC warnings. Without the help of these people, this study would never have been completed. It has been my distinct pleasure learning from them.

I. INTRODUCTION

A STATES

The enormous destructive potential of intense tropical cyclones is well known. The high winds, heavy seas and torrential rain that accompany these systems have caused great loss of life and damage to property at sea and ashore. Thus, it is not surprising that accurately forecasting the movement of tropical cyclones is of primary importance to civilian and military organizations in affected regions. Recognizing this, the Commander in Chief, U.S. Pacific Command has given an improved forecast capability the highest priority for tropical cyclone research objectives within the Department of Defense (DOD) (COMNAVOCEANCOM,1984). Especially important are long-range (48- to 72-h) forecasts, which are required by operational commanders who must consider movement of ships and aircraft to avoid damage to DOD assets. Civilian authorities also need advance warning to implement public disaster preparedness measures. Noting this requirement for increased accuracy in track forecasting, the United States Seventh Fleet Commander has levied a requirement on the Joint Typhoon Warning Center (JTWC) in Guam to achieve maximum forecast errors of 50, 100, and 150 nautical miles (n.mi.) for 24, 48, and 72 h respectively.

During the past decade, the rate of improvement in tropical cyclone track forecasting has not been as rapid as hoped. It is generally accepted that a "plateau" has been reached in the annual 24-h forecast error statistics (Elsberry, 1984). Improvements in 72-h forecasts have been realized, but only in some tropical cyclone regions (Thompson, <u>et al.</u>, 1981). Furthermore, while some components of the tropical cyclone warning system have been improved, others have been degraded. For example, the introduction and advancement of

satellite surveillance techniques have not compensated for the loss of data due to the reduction in conventional observations and in reconnaissance flights (Elsberry, 1984).

The most important recent development has been the implementation of new dynamic forecast models to predict tropical cyclone tracks (Elsberry, 1983). The U.S. Navy two-way interactive nested tropical cyclone model (NTCM) was originally developed by Harrison (1973). It has been tested with operational data by Harrison (1981), Harrison and Fiorino (1982), Fiorino <u>et al.</u> (1982) and Peak and Elsberry (1984). These tests with a large number of cases indicate that the NTCM has high potential for good performance at 48 and 72 h (Fiorino, 1985). However, problems with consistency in the NTCM tracks have limited its value as an operational forecast tool. JTWC recently evaluated NTCM track predictions in the western North Pacific during the 1984 tropical cyclone season and found that the NTCM-predicted cyclone movement averaged 40 percent less than that observed (Sandgathe, 1985). This slow bias significantly hampers the decision-making process of the typhoon duty officer (TDO) because the "decision points" in the forecast track (recurvature, etc.) are forecast too late.

The primary objective of this thesis is to determine how storm-related parameters affect the NTCM-predicted track. This knowledge may provide valuable information to the forecaster concerning the veracity of a particular NTCM forecast based on certain storm-related conditions observed at the time the tropical cyclone warning is issued. An example in which such knowledge may have been useful is Supertyphoon Abby in 1983. Fiorino (1985) suggests that the NTCM and virtually all of the other forecast aids were incorrect because Abby was such a large storm (radius of 30-kt winds greater than 300 n.mi.). By contrast, Typhoon Ike (1984), a very small storm (radius of 30-kt winds less than 100 n.mi.), was also incorrectly forecast by NTCM. In addition to size, the storm-related parameters of intensity, past 12-h intensity change, and position are studied to determine what relationships exist between these parameters and the respective NTCM forecasts. The intensity and intensity change parameters are chosen because the NTCM includes a time-independent bogus storm of 60-kt intensity in the initial conditions.

Knowledge of the NTCM performance characteristics is essential in making the correct decision to accept or reject a particular NTCM forecast. Such performance characteristics of the NTCM, based on certain storm-related parameters, are described herein. In addition, the methodology used in this study, while developed specifically for the NTCM, can (and should) be applied to other objective tropical cyclone forecast aids. Similar studies will be useful to compile "rules of thumb" for each aid under various storm-related conditions. Given a set of such rules and the initial storm-related parameters, a forecaster should be able to make a better and quicker evaluation of the relative merit of the track forecasts from each objective aid. In a broader context, the methodology of this study may be used to provide the objective measures of storm-related or synopticity factors to build a "decision-tree" algorithm. The "decision-tree" algorithm suggested by Peak and Elsberry (1985) selects the objective aid that is most appropriate to each forecast situation, based on a large number of synopticity and storm-related factors. The tree-structured approach to forecasting is expected to reduce forecast errors, improve training and guidance for inexperienced TDO's, and provide a detailed record of the decision process for post-storm analysis. Because of the myriad of possible storm-related and synopticity factors, and the numerous existing objective aids to be evaluated, much more work must be done before the "decision-tree" concept becomes an operational reality.

II. THE NESTED TROPICAL CYCLONE MODEL

The NTCM was originally developed by Harrison (1973) to demonstrate the concept of grid-nesting with two-way interactive boundaries. After early tests of the model had shown considerable promise (see Harrison, 1981), its forecasts have been received on a regular basis by the JTWC since 1979. Different versions of the NTCM were used in subsequent seasons as modifications were made to decrease the model forecast errors (Fiorino, 1985). The forecasts analyzed in this study are from the operational model during 1983. The 1981 and 1982 storms were re-run by M. Fiorino using this version to provide a homogeneous data set.

The NTCM is a three-layer model with a nested, moving grid that provides high resolution in the vicinity of the cyclone circulation. The inner grid remains centered on the storm position as it moves within the 6600 km x 4900 km outer region. The inner grid has a 1230 km x 1230 km domain with 41 km resolution. The coarse grid resolution is 205 km, which gives a five to one reduction at the interface. The NTCM does not include topographic effects. A simple analytic heating function centered on the surface cyclone is used to maintain the cyclonic circulation. The north-south boundaries of the outer grid consist of free-slip walls while cyclic continuity is assumed in the east-west direction. The inner grid has two-way interactive boundaries which allows cyclone circulation in the inner grid to influence the environmental flow and vice versa. The model uses centered time and space differencing techniques.

The NTCM is initialized from the global band tropical analysis fields generated by the Fleet Numerical Oceanography Center (FNOC). Because of the channel boundary conditions, the NTCM can be integrated independently of other models or inputs following

initialization from the analysis fields. This feature is particularly desirable from the standpoint of operational timeliness (Elsberry, 1979).

The NTCM uses a reverse balance initialization technique for wind and geopotential fields (Harrison and Fiorino, 1982). The tropical cyclone is simulated by a bogus circulation imposed on the fine grid at the observed location of the storm. The initial intensity of the storm is always 60 kt. The streamfunction field is calculated from the vorticity which is obtained from the analyzed wind field. Divergence is allowed in the solution of the nonlinear balance equation for the geopotential height field. The balanced geopotential values are then interpolated from the coarse grid to the edge of the fine grid, and similar balancing is performed on the fine grid. Values at the coincident points on the fine grid are then substituted for the interior of the coarse grid solution. The entire initialization process is repeated two or three times to ensure that both grids have converged to approximately the same balanced initial fields. Initialization of the coarse grid and treatment of the input data were modified for the 1983 season (Fiorino, 1985) to improve the consistency between the mass and wind fields, especially near the channel boundaries.

No. Contractor

The basic philosophy of the model is to provide good, long range track predictions in a timely manner for use by an operational forecaster. This study is an attempt to analyze and understand the performance characteristics of the NTCM as a function of storm-related parameters using a large data set. It will be shown that the performance of the model can be related to the values of these parameters so that an operational forecaster can use this information to help decide whether or not to use the NTCM.

III. THE DATA SET

A. NTCM, CLIPER AND BEST-TRACK POSITIONS

The position data set consists of 542 tropical cyclone cases from the western North Pacific during 1981, 1982 and 1983 in which track forecasts are available up to 72 h. These data include the NTCM and the western North Pacific CLImatology and PER-sistence model (CLIPER) forecasts as well as the verifying best-track positions in 12-h increments for all 542 cases. The data set, kindly provided by Mr. Michael Fiorino of the Naval Environmental Prediction and Research Facility (NEPRF), represents the largest homogeneous data set used to analyze the performance of the NTCM. Even so, the 542 cases represent only about one-fourth of the approximately 2200 tropical cyclone warnings issued in this region from 1981 through 1983. The reason for this is twofold:

1. The NTCM was run only once every 12 h for seasons 1981and 1982 (every 6h for 1983), whereas the JTWC issues warnings every 6h; and

2. All NTCM forecasts without verifying positions to 72 h were excluded.

The 72-h CLIPER forecasts, also provided by M. Fiorino, were run for the same cases as the NTCM. The resultant data set is homogeneous since the NTCM and CLIPER models have track predictions to 72 h for each of the 542 cases and verifying data (best track) are available for each forecast position.

The western North Pacific CLIPER, which was developed by Xu and Neumann (1985), uses regression equations to relate future storm positions to initial position, past 12- and 24-h positions, initial intensity, and Julian date. The equations were derived for storms south of 35°N and west of 150°E which occurred during the months of May through December. The forecasts to 24 h rely heavily on persistence, and more on

climatology at the 48- and 72-h forecast periods. The CLIPER track is selected as a reference in calculating the cross-track (CT) and along-track (AT) error components for both the NTCM and best-track positions (see chapter IV). The reason for using CLIPER is that it is a statistical forecast scheme that should be free of any significant bias with respect to the actual storm track.

B. STORM-RELATED PARAMETERS

DESCRIPTION BARADARY RECORDED TO AND DESCRIPTION OF THE PERSON OF

The storm latitude, longitude, intensity, previous 12-h change in intensity and radius of 30-kt winds are selected as the storm-related parameters to be used as predictors. The data are taken from the JTWC warnings and correspond to the initial times of the 542 NTCM and CLIPER forecasts. These five parameters are chosen for two reasons. First, when taken from the JTWC warnings, they represent the real-time data that are available to the TDO at the time the NTCM is run. Second, these storm-related parameters are expected to have some degree of influence on the future storm track (Elsberry, 1984).

The samples of each of the five storm-related parameters are partitioned into equal-sized terciles. The cutpoints between the terciles are then used to segregate the corresponding sample of NTCM and CLIPER forecasts into three subsamples. Various error statistics (see chapter IV) are computed for each subsample of forecasts and examined to determine differences in NTCM forecast performance. The histograms for each of these parameters (with the locations of the tercile cut points) are provided in Figs. 1a-1e.

The distribution of initial latitudes for the sample (Fig. 1a) is slightly skewed with maximum frequencies near the lower cutpoint (between 12°N and 13°N) and the mean latitude (15.5°N) near the upper cutpoint (between 16°N and 17°N). There are 183, 177 and 182 cases for the "southern", "central" and "northern" areas. In the histogram of initial longitude (Fig. 1b), the lower cutpoint is between 128°E and 129°E and the upper

cutpoint between 139°E and 140°E. The distribution of initial longitudes also appears slightly skewed, with the maximum frequency near the lower cutpoint. There are 169, 186 and 187 cases in the "western", "middle" and "eastern" areas.

The histogram of initial intensities (Fig. 1c) is skewed toward the lower intensities. The width of the cells in the histogram is 5 kt because intensities on the JTWC warnings are issued in 5-kt increments. The cutpoints, which are located between 45 and 50 kt and between 75 and 80 kt, divide the data into subsamples which shall be referred to as "weak", "moderate" and "intense" tropical cyclones. The number of cases in each subsample is 182, 182 and 178 respectively. The histogram of the previous 12-h intensity change can be separated into "weakening", "developing" and "rapidly developing" subsamples using the cutpoints between 0 and 5 kt and between 10 and 15 kt (Fig. 1d). The number of cases in these subsamples are 190, 169 and 99, respectively. The sample can not be partitioned equally because the majority of the cases falls into just a few of the cells, and the cells can not be smaller than 5 kt of 12-h intensity change. The size of the sample is consequently reduced to 458 because the intensity differences can not be computed for the first warning of a tropical cyclone.

Sealers and

Noticeable "spikes" in the histogram of the radii of 30-kt winds (Fig. 1e) occur at 30, 100, 150 and 300 n.mi. When a warning gives two semicircles of wind radii, the larger of the two is used. In addition, tropical cyclones \leq 30 kt are assigned a radius of 30 n.mi. The radius of 30-kt winds is often rather subjective as peripheral data from aircraft reconnaissance may not be available. These data were manually extracted by Mr. Charles Leonard of the Department of Meteorology at NPS from over 2200 warning messages issued by JTWC. The cutpoints are located between 105 and 110 n.mi. and between 205 and 210 n.mi., which separates the sample into "small", "medium" and "large" tropical cyclones. The number of cases in the three subsamples are 186, 181 and 175 respectively.



E

Figure 1a. Distribution of initial latitudes during 1981-83. Dashes indicate tercile cutpoints.

1.



Figure 1b. Similar to Fig. 1a except for initial longitudes.



general more execting an energy of

Figure 1c. Similar to Fig. 1a except for initial intensity (kts).

÷

20



Figure 1d. Similar to Fig. 1a except for previous 12-h intensity change (kts).



Constant No. 2010



IV. ERROR STATISTICS

A. MEAN AND MEDIAN FORECAST ERRORS

A measure of accuracy commonly used for tropical cyclone track forecasts is the "forecast error", which is defined as the great circle distance between the forecast and verifying position (Fig. 2). The mean forecast error is simply the sum of the errors divided by the number in the sample.



Figure 2. Definition of forecast and systematic error components (ΔX and ΔY). In this example, both ΔX and ΔY are negative.

Because the distribution of the forecast errors in a sample is bounded on one side by zero and unbounded on the other, many studies use the "median forecast error" which is the value of the 50th percentile in the distribution.

The mean and median forecast errors at 12, 24, 36, 48, 60 and 72 h for the NTCM and CLIPER (verified relative to best-track positions) are computed for the total sample (542 cases) and for each subsample stratified by different values of storm-related parameters. The unit used for these and all other error components is kilometer (km).

B. SYSTEMATIC ERRORS

Another measure of error for tropical storm track forecasts is the systematic error. The systematic error components, ΣX and ΣY , are simply the zonal (ΔX) and meridional (ΔY) errors averaged over the sample of forecasts (Fig. 2). The error components are calculated for each 12-h forecast period to 72 h. The systematic error components are useful in determining the presence (or absence) of an error bias in the sample. For example, a monotonic increase or decrease throughout the forecast period indicates a systematic error which might be statistically removed (Peak and Elsberry, 1982). The sign convention for this study is positive if the forecast position is north ($+\Sigma Y$) or east ($+\Sigma X$) of the best-track position. The results of the systematic, mean and median error statistics for the NTCM and CLIPER samples are discussed in chapter V (Tables 3 and 4).

C. CROSS-TRACK AND ALONG-TRACK ERROR COMPONENTS RELATIVE TO EXTRAPOLATED CLIPER FORECASTS

Forecast errors are also presented as cross-track (CT) and along-track (AT) components. The objective of the CT/AT system is to provide information to the forecaster about the movement and direction of the storm relative to a standard forecast aid such as persistence or climatology (Elsberry and Peak, 1986). The mean and median forecast errors give only the magnitude of the error relative to the actual position and the systematic error gives the average of the zonal and meridional error components. On the other hand, the CT/AT errors also provide information about the direction of the forecast in a storm-oriented reference frame. Elsberry and Peak (1986) evaluated tropical cyclone aids based on CT and AT components relative to an extrapolated track based on warning positions at the initial (00) and past 12-h time periods. They interpreted the CT components as turning motion and the AT components as acceleration or deceleration. This directionality aspect gives important information to the forecaster that is not available from the other error measures.

The CT/AT scheme used in this study differs from that of Elsberry and Peak (1986) in that the CT and AT components for the NTCM or best-track positions for each forecast period (24, 48, 72 h) are calculated relative to the CLIPER forecast at the corresponding time. For example, the CT/AT at 72 h is calculated relative to a line connecting the 72 and 60 h CLIPER positions (Fig. 3).



Figure 3. Definition of cross-track (CT) and along-track (AT) components at 72 h relative to an extrapolated track based on CLIPER positions at 72 and 60 h. In this example, CT is positive (right) and AT is negative (slow) with respect to the CLIPER track.

.....

The perpendicular distance from the NTCM or best-track position to the extrapolated track is the cross-track component, with positive values to the right of the track and negative to the left. The distance along the extrapolated track from the CLIPER position to the perpendicular from the NTCM or best-track position is the along-track component. Positive (negative) AT values occur if the perpendicular meets the track ahead (behind) the corresponding CLIPER position.

The CT/AT components of the best track are computed for the entire best-track sample at 24-, 48- and 72-h forecast periods. The means and standard deviations of the distributions for each forecast period are shown in Table 1.

Table 1

Means (x) and standard deviations (σ) of the 24-, 48- and 72-h CT a	Ind
AT components (km) for the total sample of best-track positions	
(relative to CLIPER forecasts).	

1	24 h		48 h		72 h	
	x	σ	x	σ	x	σ
СТ	-22	164	-29	340	-41	574
AT	-66	165	-179	377	-276	594

Notice that the mean values of the 24-, 48-hand 72-h CT errors are all very close to zero, which indicates that the best-track CT components are not biased with respect to the CLIPER track. This result is not surprising because a statistical scheme such as CLIPER should have no bias relative to the overall mean position. It can also be seen that the standard deviation increases with time. The symmetric properties of the CT sample are evident in the histograms for the samples of the three time periods (Figs. 4a-c). The tercile cutpoints are indicated on the histograms by dashed lines. The cutpoints of the 24-h CT distribution (Fig. 4a) are at -75 km and 50 km, which is almost exactly centered about the mean (-22 km). The 48-h CT (Fig. 4b) cutpoints are at -125 km and 125 km, and are also symmetric about the mean. The same properties can be seen in the 72-h sample (Fig. 4c), which has cutpoints at -200 km and 200 km. The nearly symmetric distribution of best-track CT error components around the mean CLIPER track supports the use of CLIPER as a referencing system because it is more likely to provide an orientation with respect to the mean track of the tropical cyclone. The terciles have been labeled left (L),

Figure 4a. Distribution of best-track 24-h cross-track (CT) error components (km). Each point on abscissa indicates of the respective histogram cell. Dashes indicate approximate locations of tercile cutpoints.



27

ଷ୍ଟ୍ଟିନ୍ନ୍ନ୍କୁକ୍ଟିନ୍ଟିକ୍ଟିନ୍ତ୍ର SESAC 70 7518MUN **45.0 45.0 44.0** 40.0 38.0 36.0 34 0 32.0 . P 3 2.7 SAMPLE SIZE = 542 STD DEV = 340.1 900 NE.AN----29.3 ž 3 200 8 ŝ R ŝ 3 ġ 8 1 -200 200 \square 100 200 ŝ -700 -800 008-- 100 -1100 R 0.060-0 085 0.050 0.075 0.070-0.065 0.060.0 0.055-0.050 0.040.0 0.035 0.030-0.025 0.020 0.015-0.010 0.005 0000 500 YTU:SABORG

111200000

Figure 4b. Similar to Fig. 4a except for 48-h CT error components.





center (C) and right (R) according to the distributions of the best-track CT error components for the 24-, 48- and 72-h distributions. These three (L, C and R) categories are used to compare NTCM forecasts to the best-track positions.

こう いちまい とう

تعنيدينا للالا

The AT distributions exhibit characteristics similar to those of the CT distributions discussed above. The values of the standard deviation for the AT distributions (Table 1) are very close to those of the CT for all three time periods. The AT histograms (Figs. 5a-c) resemble the CT histograms (Figs. 4a-c) in that they are also very symmetric about the mean. As with the CT error components, the terciles are marked on Figs. 5a-c and have been named to indicate the position with respect to the extrapolated CLIPER track: slow (S), center (C) and fast (F). However, the negative mean (x) values (Table 1) of -66, -179, and -276 km indicate that best-track positions are consistently "slow" with respect to the extrapolated CLIPER track (or, that CLIPER is "fast" compared to the best-track). This results from the fact that given the same initial position and identical speed of movement, any deviation in direction of movement from the reference (past 12 h extrapolated CLIPER) track will produce an apparent "slow" AT error component. This is one of the shortcomings of attempting to define a storm-oriented coordinate system (Neumann and Pelissier, 1981).

The primary advantage in using the CLIPER forecast rather than an extrapolated track from warning and -12 h positions (as was done in Elsberry and Peak, 1986) as the reference for CT/AT components is that it appears to be an excellent storm-oriented coordinate system. This is especially true at the 48-h and 72-h forecast periods. A track extrapolated from warning and 12-h old positions is very representative of storm movement for the early (12- to 24-h) forecast periods, but not so of the later (48- to 72-h) forecast periods. Compared to simple extrapolation, the inclusion of climatology in the method described above provides a better CT/AT frame of reference at all forecast periods because it is evidently more representative of the true storm track at all time periods.

Figure 5a. Distribution of best-track 24-h along-track (AT) error components (km). Each point on abscissa indicates lowest value of the respective histogram cell. Dashes indicate approximate locations of tercile cutpoints.



31

1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1

. .







Figure 5c. Similar to Fig. 5a except for 72-h AT error components.

33

C10.0
D. CONTINGENCY TABLES, CLASS ERRORS AND M SCORES

After division of the best-track CT and AT components into terciles, a scoring system that assesses penalty points for forecasts that fall into the incorrect tercile is used to rank the NTCM. The NTCM forecasts are also divided into terciles and each forecast compared to the tercile for the best track. A forecast is defined as having a zero-class error if it falls into the same tercile as the best track, a one-class error if it is in a tercile adjacent to that of the best track and a two-class error if it is two terciles away from the best track. Contingency tables for the CT and AT components are then formed at each of the forecast intervals (24, 48 and 72 h) as shown in Tables 2a and 2b.

The upper portion of Table 2a gives the contingency tables for the NTCM for all three time periods. The cutpoints that define the tercile boundaries (see also Figs. 4a-c) are indicated just below the contingency tables. The zero-class errors are arranged in the bins located along the upper-left to lower-right diagonal. The two-class errors are located in the upper-right and lower-left bins and the remaining bins contain the one-class errors. A higher number in the zero-class diagonal relative to the one- and two-class error bins indicates a greater skill level. For example, the total number of zero-class CT errors for the 48-h time period is 280, or slightly more "hits" than at either 24 h (236) or 72 h (265). The totals column on the right side of each contingency table indicates the number in each best-track tercile (L, C and R). Similarly, the totals along the bottom row of each contingency table show the number of NTCM forecasts fall into the "R" category at 48 and 72 h (123 and 130) than the best-track (178 and 189), but the number of NTCM forecasts in the "R" category at 24 h (171) is very close to the best track (186). This indicates the NTCM has a left bias in the later forecast periods, but none at the 24-h period.

TABLE 2a Cross-track contingency tables, percentage of class error summaries and M scores

.

	Totals	180	173	189	265	km;						7
	2	19	33	78	130) km; to 200 0 km	%2	10.6		22.7	11.2	100
72 h	NTCM C	58	84	68	210	L < -200 C = -200 R ≥ 200	%1	33.2	51.4	36.0	39.9	core =
	L]	103	56	43	202	Points:	0%	57.2	48.6	41.3	48.9	N S
		L	U	R	Totals	Cut		Γ	C	R	Totals	
	otals	188		178	280	ÿ	1					7
	R	19	31	73	123	km; to 125 . km	%2	10.1		18.5	5.6	58.0
48 h	ТС:И С	56	94	72	222	 -125 -125 125 125 	%1	29.8	46.6	40.5	38.9	sore =
-	ע ר	13	51	33	67	oints: L C R	0%	60.1	53.4	41.0	51.6	N S
		L	L	<u> </u>	otals]	Cut P	-	1	ບ	R	Totals	-
	Totals	177	179	186	236 T	÷			dere der der ette			
	R Totals	35 177	53 179	83 186	171 236 1	km; to 50 km; 1 km	%2	19.7		15.6	11.8.	68.3
24 h	NTCM C R Totals	66 35 177	77 53 179	74 83 186	217 171 236 1	L < -75 km; C = -75 to 50 km; R ≥ 50 km	%1 %2	37.3 19.7	57.0	39.8 15.6	44.7 11.8.	ore = 68.3
24 h	NTCM L C R Totals	76 66 35 177	49 77 53 179	29 74 83 186	154 217 171 236 1	Points: L < -75 km; C = -75 km; R ≥ 50 km	%0 %1 %2	42.9 37.3 19.7	43.0 57.0	44.6 39.8 15.6	43.5 44.7 11.8	M Score = 68.3
24 h	NTCM L C R Totals	L 76 66 35 177	C 49 77 53 179	R 29 74 83 186	Totals 154 217 171 236 1	Cut Points: L < -75 km; C = -75 to 50 km; R ≥ 50 km	%0 %1 %2	L 42.9 37.3 19.7	C 43.0 57.0	R 44.6 39.8 15.6	Totals 43.5 44.7 11.8	M Score = 68.3

Same as 2a, except for along-track. **TABLE 2b**

10.11

12 6 14 16 18 L 18 L 18

5

	8	ŝ	<u>۲</u>	5	v			nanan kasa da da s			anang inin
	[otal	18	17	18	1 1 1 1 1						1
	F 1	13	45	88	146 km; to -50 k km	%2			25.3	10.8	58.1
72 h	NTCM C	59	87	48	194 S < -400 C = -400 F ≥ -50	%1	32.2	50.8	26.4	36.5	core =
	S	111	45	46	202 Points: 3	%0	60.7	49.2	48.4	52.8	M S
		S	C	н	Totals Cut]		S	U	Щ	Totals	
	otals	178	180	184	268 n;						
	FT	11	41	79	131 m 131 m	<i>%</i> 2	6.2		26.6	10.9	61.4
18 h	rcm c	51	73	56	180 < -275 = -275 w	1%	28.1	59.4	30.4	39.5	core =
~	N N	116	- 99	49	231 C	0%	65.2	40.6	42.9	49.5	M S
		S S	 ن	<u>Г</u>	Cut Po		S	C	ц	Totals	
	ls	5	5	. 0	0					****	*********
	Tota	1	18	18	34						1
	F	14	25	51	90 km; kn 15 k	%2	8.0		37.8	15.3	70.7
24 h	NTCM C	41	69	61	171 S < -125 C = -125 F ≥ 15	%1	23.4	63.1	33.9	40.1	ore =
	s l	120	93	68	281 Points: 5	%0	08.0	36.9	28.3	44.3	M Sc
		S	U	<u>ب</u> تا ب	Totals Cut I	L	s v	с С	Ľ,	Totals	I
		Bes	st Tra	ck]	Best	Tra	ck		

ALCH CHICKS

シントのたい

X

The lower half of Table 2a contains the percentages of NTCM zero-, one- and two-class errors for each (L,C,R) best-track tercile and the totals. The percentages provide information about the general distribution of errors. For example, notice that at 72 h, a higher percentage of two-class errors occur when the best track is in the "R" tercile (22.7) than in the "L" tercile (10.6). This indicates that at 72 h, the NTCM is more than twice as likely to be left of the best track when there is a two-class error.

Table 2b is similar to 2a, but contains the AT contingency tables (S, C, and F categories). The highest number of zero-class errors is in the 72-h period (286). Notice that the number of NTCM forecasts that fell into the slow (S) categories for all three time periods is very high. This agrees with the observation by Sandgathe (1985) that the NTCM movement is on the average 40% less than the observed cyclone movement.

A primary motivation for the tercile pattern separation into contingency tables is to determine if the NTCM correctly distinguishes between left-turning and right-turning as well as slow and fast storms (Elsberry and Peak, 1986). The lower portions of Tables 2a and 2b summarize the percentage of class errors for each category (L, C and R or S, C and F) of the sample. For example, in the 72-h portion of Table 2a, 180 of the storms moved to the left of the CLIPER track (total of first row). Of these, 103 (57.2%) are forecast correctly by the NTCM, 58 (33.2%) are forecast to be in the center tercile (one-class error) and 19 (10.6%) in the right-turning tercile (two-class error). The percent of each class of errors for the best-track terciles (L, C, R or S, C, F) and the total sample are tabulated below the contingency tables. In the above example for 72 h, the "totals" row shows that the 48.9%, 39.9% and 11.2% of the NTCM forecasts for CT were in the zero-, one- and two-class error categories, respectively. For comparison purposes, a purely random selection would have percentages of 33.3%, 44.4% and 22.2%, respectively. Thus, the NTCM is more skillful than a random forecast for this sample.

A further distillation of the information contained in the contingency tables is made as an aid to compare quantitatively the performance of forecasts. Preisendorfer and Mobley (1982) devised a scoring system to represent the level of skill in a forecast as a single number (M) defined as

$$\mathbf{M} = \mathbf{V} + 2\mathbf{W},\tag{1}$$

where (U,V,W) are the percentages of (zero-, one-, two-class) errors such that

$$\mathbf{U} + \mathbf{V} + \mathbf{W} \neq 100. \tag{2}$$

The quantity M is simply a linear penalty score according to the error class; the lower the M score, the higher the degree of skill. In the example used above (Table 2a), the M score for the NTCM at 72 h for the CT component is 62.1. A random tercile selection would have an M score of 88.9. Therefore, the M score also indicates that the NTCM is more skillful than a random forecast.

An M score for the CLIPER is suggested as another standard of comparison. Because the terciles are defined relative to CLIPER, the CLIPER forecast track will always be in the center tercile. Thus, there can never be more than a one-class error. However, the terciles are constructed so that for both the CT and the AT distributions 66.7% of the cases are not in the center tercile. The CLIPER forecast will always fail by one class in these cases. Thus, the M score is simply 66.7 for both the CT and the AT components. For the total sample (see Tables 2a and 2b), the CT/AT M scores for the NTCM at 48 h (58.0/61.4) and 72 h (62.1/58.1) indicate that the NTCM is more skillful than CLIPER at the later forecast periods. However, the 24-h CT/AT M scores (68.3/70.7) indicate that the NTCM is essentially a no-skill forecast at this time period.

V. RESULTS

A. TOTAL SAMPLE STATISTICS

The CT and AT percentages of class errors, M scores, mean and median errors and systematic errors for the total NTCM sample are summarized in Table 3. The CT M scores (68.3, 58.0 and 62.1 at 24, 48 and 72 h) suggest that overall, the NTCM forecasts are more skillful at 48 and 72 h than at 24 h. The AT M scores (70.7, 61.4 and 58.1 at 24, 48 and 72 h) also indicate a similar result. Also, the NTCM performs better than the CLIPER (M=66.7) at these time periods. However, the 24-h M scores of the CT and AT

TABLE 3

NTCM total sample (542 cases) percent class errors and M scores	(left).
Systematic, mean and median forecast errors (right).	

	%0	%1	%2	М		ΣΧ	ΣΥ	Mn	Mḋ
СТ	43.5	44.7	11.8	68.3	12 h	47	2	137	127
24 h AT	44.3	40.6	15.1	70.8	24 h	60	-2	225	194
СТ	51.7	38.7	9.6	57.9	36 h	45	4	301	263
48 h AT	49.4	39.5	11.1	61.7	48 h	17	-16	397	355
СТ	48.9	39.7	11.4	62.5	60 h	9	-3	508	453
72 h AT	52.8	36.3	10.9	58.1	72 h	-7	-9	626	565

components (68.3 and 70.8) indicate that the NTCM represents the storm movement no better than CLIPER. Notice that the relatively high percentage of AT two-class errors at 24 h (15.1%). Referring back to the contingency table (Table 2b) for this forecast period,

it can be seen that this high percentage is due to a large number of two-class errors in the lower-left corner of the table (68). This indicates that the NTCM has a slow bias, especially at the 24-h period.

Sec. Sec. Sec.

The mean (Mn) and median (Md) forecast errors for the overall sample of NTCM forecasts (Table 3) and the CLIPER (Table 4) suggest that the NTCM performance is generally no better than CLIPER at the early (12- and 24-h) time periods. However, the NTCM consistently has lower forecast errors at the later (36-through 72-h) periods. For this sample of forecasts, the CT/AT error statistics, which measure forecasting skill based on "storm-motion" coordinates, are in good agreement with the forecast error statistics, which account only for the distance between the forecast and the best-track position.

TABLE 4

CLIPER systematic ($\sum X$ and $\sum Y$), mean (Mn) and median (Md) forecast errors (km) for the total sample (542 cases).

	ΣΧ	ΣΥ	Mn	Md
12 h	-6	21	107	90
24 h	3	47	206	172
36 h	22	73	329	278
48 h	41	96	457	373
60 h	48	115	592	480
72 h	56	121	730	590

The slow bias of the NTCM is also evident in the zonal (ΣX) and meridional (ΣY) errors (Table 3). The 12-, 24- and 36-h ΣX averages are 47, 60 and 45 km, which indicates that the NTCM is initially east of the best-track position. For westward-moving

storms, these positive values suggest that the NTCM is "slow" during the early forecast periods. Most of the storms in this sample will have a component toward the west because of the requirement that a complete 72-h track be included. This will tend to reduce the number of the eastward-moving storms that tend to undergo extratropical transition prior to 72 h. Notice that in the 48- to 72-h time period, the values of ΣX decrease from 17 to -7, which indicates that the average NTCM position becomes slightly west of the best-track position at 72 h. However, this error is very small compared with the mean and median forecast errors. The meridional (ΣY) components of the systematic error of the NTCM are also negligible. In fact, the largest deviation from zero at 48 h is only 16 km south of best-track latitude (Table 3), which is well within the "noise".

The CLIPER systematic errors (Table 4) indicate that the average forecast positions are generally east and north of the best track. although these systematic errors are not large, near zero values had been expected. This seems to suggest that this sample from 1981-3 had somewhat different characteristics than the sample used to create the CLIPER algorithm.

B. LATITUDE EFFECTS

As indicated in Fig. 1a, the sample of NTCM forecasts is divided into southern (latitudes < 13° N), central (between 13° and 17° N) and northern (> 17° N) samples. The locations of the latitude and longitude (section C) tercile cutpoints are shown in Fig. 6.

Two obvious points arise from an inspection of the M scores of the latitude-stratified subsample (Table 5). First, the M scores of the 48- and 72-h CT components for the southern area are much lower than those for the central and northern areas. This suggest that the NTCM is more skillful in forecasting the direction of storm movement for systems with initial positions south of 13° N. Second, both CT and AT M scores indicate that the NTCM has less skill in forecasting direction and speed at 24 h than at 48 h and 72 h for all



Sec. States

Approximation of the second second

.

5

Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM forecasts stratified by latitude.

	La	ıtitude	< 13°]	z		Lai	titude	13° to	۱7°	Ľ	atitude	≥ 17°		
	%0	%1	%2	M		0%	%1	%2	M	%0	%1	%2	M	
IJ	47.5	41.0	11.5	64.0		42.4	44.6	13.0	70.6	40.7	48.3	11.0	70.3	
24 h AT	44.3	36.0	19.7	75.4		37.3	44.1	18.6	81.3	51.1	41.8	7.1	56.0	
ដ	57.9	34.3	8.8	50.8		53.7	37.3	9.0	55.3	43.4	45.6	11.0	70.3	
48 h AT	. 53.0	33.3	10.9	57.9	•	44.6	39.0	16.4	71.8	50.6	43.4	6.0	55.4	
СŢ	55.7	38.3	6.0	50.3		51.4	35.6	13.0	61.6	39.6	45.0	15.4	75.8	
72 h AT	54.1	36.1	9.8	55.7		53.1	33.3	13.6	60.5	51.0	39.6	9.3	58.2	
	No.	Subs	ample	= 183		Zo. in	Subsi	ample	= 177	ło. in	Subsa	ample	= 182	

.

ジャナトロ

WAXAON " WAXAAN

فكمعتدين

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for NTCM forecasts stratified by latitude.

	La	titude .	< 13° }	7	Latitu	de 13'	to 17	Z		Lat	itude 2	≥ 17° ľ	-7
	ΣX	ΣΥ	Mn	рМ	ΣΧ	ΣY	Mn	PM		ΣX	ΣY	Mn	PM.
12 h	45	5	158	148	62	2	137	124		33	-	116	106
24 h	· 76	23	261	235	109	-10	228	198		4	-19	188	165
36 h	58	14	- 341	301	119	3	298	263		-38	s-	264	246
48 h	14	-23	433	368	135	-17	392	345		-94	6-	366	346
4 09	2	-16	527	457	164	4	507	462		-136	12	489	441
72 h	-9	-21	617	543	200	. Ç	616	580		-210	4-	644	578
	No. in	Subsa	umple	= 183	ło. in	Subsa	ımple	= 177	Ž	o. in	Subsa	mple =	- 182

C.

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for CLIPER forecasts stratified by latitude.

17° N	Mn Md	4 80	3 162	95 264	00 342	14 439	33 537	ple = 182
atitude ≥ 1	ΣY	29 10	63 19	103 2	132 4	136 5	102 6	Subsam
Ľ	ΣX	-4	٩	4-	-3	-20	-57	No. ii
	_							
N°N	PW	88	161	269	376	496	606	= 177
3° to 1	Mn	96	192	309	432	566	714	ample
tude 13	Σ	20	49	84	117	149	178	Subs
Latil	ΣX	-10	-2	24	67	117	185	No. ii
z	pM	101	195	302	415	525	619	= 183
< 13°	Mn	119	233	. 382	539	694	841	ample
atitude	ΣΥ	15	29	31	41	61	86	I Subs
Ľ	ΣX	4-	16	46	59	48	43	Vo. in
		12 h	24 h	36 h	48 h	60 h	72 h	~

a a sum a construction of the second se

three subsamples. This result can also be seen in the forecast error statistics (Table 6), which indicate that the NTCM has higher mean and median 24-h forecast errors in the southern and central areas than CLIPER (Table 7).

Ê

Although the CT and AT M scores generally decrease with increasing forecast period, the AT M scores for the northern subsample are an exception. The 24-h score is very low (56.0) with respect to that for the total sample (70.8), and the M score increases slightly to 58.2 at 72 h. This seems to indicate that the slow bias of the NTCM (mentioned above) is less pronounced for storms with initial latitudes north of 17°N. Inspection of the contingency table (Table A-4, appendix) indicates that the number of two-class errors in the slow category for the northern subsample (11) is much less than those for the southern (28) and central (29) subsamples. In addition, the NTCM median 24 h forecast error (Table 6) for the northern area is much smaller than those for the southern and central areas (165 km versus 235 and 198 km, respectively). This 24-h median forecast error is even slightly smaller than that of CLIPER (175 km, see Table 4) for the total sample. Therefore, the slow bias of the NTCM at 24 h is largely due to the storms initially south of 17° N. This initial slow bias probably contributes to increased forecast errors at 48 and 72 h because it leads to an incorrect timing of recurvature (Sandgathe, 1985). Missing the time of recurvature can produce large forecast errors. Although the AT errors for the northern area are quite small, the large CT errors seem to offset them at the 48 and 72 h time periods.

Notice that the NTCM mean and median forecast errors at 72 h (Table 6) for the northern subsample (644 and 578 km) are greater than those of the CLIPER (Table 7) for this subsample (633 and 537 km), which is consistent with the NTCM CT M score at 72 h (75.3) being much higher than that of the CLIPER (66.7). Therefore, the NTCM is no more skillful than CLIPER for storms north of 17° N, even at the 48- and 72-h periods. Only in the southern subsample does the NTCM clearly outperform CLIPER at 48 and

72 h with respect to all of the error statistics; CT, AT and mean and median forecast errors (see Tables 6 and 7).

One explanation of the apparently good performance for NTCM in terms of the CT errors (especially at 48 and 72 h) in the southern area may be that the synoptic features that cause recurvature are less likely to extend into this region (south of 13° N). Therefore, the lack of recurvature influences on the storm tracks probably contribute to the low CT M scores at 72 h (50.3 for the southern area versus 61.6 and 75.8 for the central and northern areas).

The systematic errors of the NTCM (Table 6) indicate that the meridional (ΣY) averages for all three areas are very close to zero and show no systematic change with increasing forecast period. However, the central area exhibits an increase in zonal (ΣX) error from 62 km to 200 km from 12 to 72 h, which indicates that the NTCM forecasts are east of the best track. Conversely, the northern area zonal error decreases from 33 km to -210 km throughout the period, with the NTCM becoming farther west of the best track. The absence of such large systematic errors in the southern area is consistent with the other error statistics, which suggests that the NTCM performs best for storms initially south of 13° N.

C. LONGITUDE EFFECTS

Research State

Ĩ

The cutpoints for dividing the sample of forecasts into western, middle and eastern areas are 129° E and 140° E (Figs. 1b Fig. 6). The lowest CT M scores for the NTCM are found in the western area (Table 8). This is due to a low percentage of two-class errors in the western area for all three time periods (3.5, 2.4 and 5.3% for 24, 48 and 72 h). The contingency tables (Tables A-7, A-8 and A-9) also do not indicate any left or right bias of the NTCM in the western area. Although the CT M scores at 24 and 48 h are very low (50.8 and 43.8) for the western area, the corresponding AT M scores are higher

Pressing Records approximate 2005555 approximate approximate (

annonat maaaaada saasaas aaaaasa hadad

Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM forecasts stratified by longitude.

							_	-
Е	Σ	74.8	66.3	61.5	57.8	54.5	56.6	= 187
≥ 140	962	17.1	17.1	12.3	10.7	12.3	12.8	mple
gitude	%1	40.6	32.1	36.9	36.4	29.9	31.0	Subsa
Lon	%0	42.3	50.8	50.8	52.9	57.8	56.2	o. in
								Z
40° E	M	77.4	69.9	67.1	60.1	74.7	57.0	= 186
9° to 1	%2	14.0	14.5	13.4	8.0	16.1	7.0	mple
ude 12	%1	49.4	40.9	40.3	44.1	42.5	43.0	Subsa
Longit	×0	36.6	44.6	46.2	47.8	41.4	50.0	lo. in
					.			
е. Е	M	50.8	76.9	43.8	67.4	57.9	60.9	= 169
: < 129	<i>%</i> 2	3.5	13.6	2.4	14.8	5.3	13.0	mple
gitude	%1	43.8	49.7	39.0	37.9	47.3	34.9	Subsa
Lon	%0	52.7	36.7	58.6	47.3	47.3	52.1	lo. in
		Ŀ	24 h AT	ี ยี่	48 h AT	Ŀ	72 h AT	
					-			

No. in Subsample = 169

10) | PROSECOO | PROVEDA | 165

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for NTCM forecasts stratified by longitude.

	Lon	ngitude	:< 125	•Е		Longiti	ude 12	9° to 1	40° E		Lon	Igitude	≥ 140	ш.
	ΣX	ΣΥ	Mn	PM		ΣX	ΣΥ	Mn	PM		ΣΧ	ΣΥ	Mn	PM
2 h	25	-é	126	120.		58	-16	133	122		55	27	151	134
4 h	45	-16	194	173		61	-40	231	224		72	49	248	198
6 h	50	-19	251	232		29	-28	305	292		58	56	341	273
8 h	24	-60	348	322		6-	-42	400	367		37	48	439	368
ч 0	3	-40	449	417		-33	-34	516	486		55	62	553	481
2 h	1	-49	562	520		-74	-41	637	582		52	57	673	574
	No.	n Subs	sample	= 169	-	No. ii	n Sub	sample	= 18(2	No. ir	n Subs	ample	= 187

i.

2.2.2.2.2

. Table 10

K

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for CLIPER forecasts stratified by longitude.

	Loi	ngitud	e < 12	9° E .	Longit	ude 12	29° to	140° E		Loi	ngitud	e ≥ 14(), Е
	ΣX	ΣΥ	Mn	PW	ΣX	ΣY	Mn	PM		ΣΧ	ΣY	Mn	PW
12 h	-26	19	96	84	89-	10	98	79		15	35	124	108
24 h	-28	32	183	152	-10	27	191	158		43	80	242	212
36 h	-17	45	302	246	ø,	49	297	262		88	121	385	324
48 h	-1	60	441	362	 89	66	408	353		127	160	522	446
4 09	11	71	593	465	-18	73 [.]	523	452		147	198	659	581
72 h	28	73	746	579	-39	65	650	552		175	222	794	705
	No.	n Subs	ample	= 169	No. i	n Sub	sample	. = 18	9	No. ii	n Subs	sample	=187

(76.9 and 67.4) than those in the middle and eastern areas. This offsetting effect degrades the overall performance of the NTCM. Research is required to improve the NTCM so that it has low M scores in both components.

The eastern area has the next lowest CT M scores, which decrease from 74.8 to 61.5 to 54.5 at 24, 48 and 72 h. The 72-h value is even slightly lower than the corresponding western area CT M score. The highest CT M scores are found in the middle area (77.4, 67.1 and 74.7 at 24, 48 and 72 h). The CT performance for this longitude band is less skillful than CLIPER (M = 66.7) at all forecast periods.

Except for the very poor AT performance in the western area mentioned above, the AT M scores do not show major variations between longitude bands. The AT M scores at all three time periods for the middle and eastern areas are similar to the those of the total NTCM sample (Table 3).

The systematic error measures of the NTCM (Table 9) also show no major departures from those of the overall sample statistics in Table 3. The $\sum X$ and $\sum Y$ for all three subsamples are generally less than 70 km. In the eastern area the NTCM has small and nearly constant eastward zonal ($\sum X \approx 50$ km) and northward meridional ($\sum Y \approx 50$ km) errors throughout the forecast period. In the middle area, the errors are fairly constant throughout the forecast period with a slight southward meridional displacement ($\sum Y \approx -30$ km) and a monotonic variation from an eastward ($\sum X = 58$ km) to a westward zonal displacement ($\sum X = -74$ km). For a westward-moving storm, this may be interpreted as the NTCM track starting out "slow" or east of the best track and "passing" or moving west of the best-track longitude over the 72-h time period. Very small variations of the systematic errors with forecast period (< 50 km) are observed in the western area. This is consistent with the earlier finding that the CT/AT M scores are generally lower and indicates again that the NTCM is highly skillful in the western area. The mean and median forecast errors (Table 9) are also consistent with the CT/AT and systematic error statistics. That is, the smallest mean and median forecast errors for all forecast periods are found in the western area and the highest are in the eastern area. Although the NTCM is nearly as skillful as the CLIPER at 24 h in the eastern area, the CLIPER generally outperforms the NTCM at 12 and 24 h. In addition, the CLIPER forecast errors are almost as low or lower than the NTCM at all forecast periods in the middle area. The NTCM outperforms CLIPER by about 40 to 100 km (both mean and median errors) at 36 through 72 h in the western area 93 and 184 km lower than those of the CLIPER.

In summary, the NTCM performs better in terms of all of the error statistics for storms with initial longitudes west of 129° E. One explanation may be that the western area storms are closer to the relatively data-rich continental areas (Fig. 6) compared to the data-sparse eastern regions. Thus, the initial wind fields in the NTCM are more likely to be representative of the true wind fields. The frequency of storm fix positions also increases in this area because of the proximity to land-based radar and synoptic data, which provides a better initial position for the NTCM.

D. INTENSITY EFFECTS

STREET STATES

As indicated in Fig. 1c, the sample of NTCM forecasts is divided into storms with initial intensity < 50 kt, between 50 and 75 kt and ≥ 80 kt. These groups will be referred to as the weak, moderate and intense subsamples, respectively. Recall that the initial intensity of the bogus storm in the NTCM is always 60 kt, which is near the mean of the moderate subsample.

The M scores for both CT and AT errors are relatively low for the moderate subsample (Table 11). In fact, the M scores for both CT and AT at every forecast period (24, 48 and 72 h) are considerably smaller for the moderate subsample than those for the other two

BARRAN REPORT BARRAN REPORT REPORTANCE INVESTIG

Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM forecasts stratified by intensity.

Intensity ≤ 45 knots

Intensity 50 to 75 knots

Intensity ≥ 80 knots

	0%	%1	%2	M		<i>%</i> 0	%1	%2	Σ	%0	%1	% 2	Σ
CT	40.7	41.7	17.6	76.9		48.9	41.8	8.3	58.4	41.0	49.4	9.6	68.6
24 h AT	39.6	37.3	23.1	83.5		49.5	38.4	12.1	62.6	43.8	46.1	10.1	66.3
C	46.7	40.1	13.2	66.5		61.0	33.0	6.0	45.0	47.2	43.2	9.6	62.4
48 h AT	44.0	41.2	14.8	70.8		58.8	31.9	9.3	50.5	45.5	45.5	9.0	63.5
ст	48.9	40.1	11.0	62.1		56.6	36.8	6.6	50.0	41.0	42.1	16.9	75.9
72 h AT	50.5	35.7	13.8	63.3		56.6	33.0	10.4	53.8	51.1	40.5	8.4	57.3
	No.	in Sub	sample	= 18	5	No. in	n Subs	ample	= 182	No. ii	a Subs	ample	= 17{

AN AN AN

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for NTCM forecasts stratified by intensity.

	Inte	snsity ±	≤ 45 kn	ots	Intens	ity 50	to 75 l	knots	Inte	insity 2	2 80 kr	lots
	ΣX	ΣY	Mn	рW	 ΣX	ΣY	Mn	рМ	ΣX	ΣΥ	Mn	ΡW
12 h	73	13	173	158	50	1	125	120	16	89 -	112	100
24 h	108	4	275	240	73	-2	213	194	ċ.	89 -	187	162
36 h	94	15	358	289	 61	6-	282	277	-20	6	261	234
48 h	69	-18	461	369	54	-44	374	356	 -73	13	356	323
4 09	84	-25	566	491	44	-37	480	448	-105	55	477	417
72 h	82	-37	671	591	43	-32	592	557	-150	41	614	558
]	No.	in Sub	sample	= 182	No. in	sdus 1	sample	= 182	No. in	Subs	ample	= 178

and the second second

þ

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for CLIPER forecasts stratified by intensity.

	Inte	snsity s	≤45 kn	iots	Inten	sity 50	to 75 I	knots	Inte	snsity 2	≥ 80 k	nots
	ΣX	ΣΥ	Mn	рМ	ΣX	ΣY	Mn	ΡW	ΣΧ	ΣΥ	Mn	рМ
12 h	-15	21	134	111	7	23	103	84	-10	20	18	73
24 h	-15	48	234	210	31	38	215	166	6-	54	168	155
36 h	6-	60	346	291	11	55	361	281	5	103	279	254
48 h	6-	68	461	389	107	71	517	389	24	152	393	350
60 h	-31	76	574	483	134	84	680	534	40	187	520	455
72 h	-34	83	694	575	157	89	835	652	44	194	660	552
	No.	n Subs	ample	= 182	No. in	i Subs	ample	= 182	Vo. in	Subs	ample	= 178

subsamples. Nearly all of the M scores in the moderate subsample are at least ten points better than the M scores from the total sample (Table 3). An exception is the 72-h AT M score, which is 53.8 for the moderate subsample and 58.1 for the total sample. The M scores of the weak subsample are generally the highest of the three subsamples. A possible explanation is that the deep tropospheric bogus storm in the NTCM is not a good representation of these weak storms. The M scores for the intense subsample are closer to the total sample scores (Table 3), but higher than the 48- and 72-h CT cases.

BEERE BEERE BEERE BEERE BEERE

The contingency tables for intensity stratifications (Tables A-13 to A-18) provide further explanation of the M scores. Notice that for all three forecast periods, the NTCM CT errors are biased to the right of the best track for the weak group, are fairly evenly distributed about the best track for the moderate subsample, and are typically to the left of the best track for the intense subsample. These results suggest that the NTCM may predict recurvature too quickly for the less intense storms and may be slow in recurving storms with intensity \geq 80 kt. The 60-kt bogus storm may result in excessive poleward deflecting of the weak storms that are expected to be traveling from east to west. By contrast, the poleward deflection may be underestimated by the bogus storm in the NTCM when the storm is actually more intense. This is especially true for right-moving storms (relative to CLIPER) at 72 h, when the NTCM tends to forecast a left-moving path (two-class error) in 40.6% of the cases.

The AT M scores (Table 11) are also lower for the moderate subsample, although at 72 h, they are not much lower than that of the intense subsample (53.8 versus 57.3, respectively). The high percentage of two-class errors in the fast category of the 24-, 48- and 72-h AT contingency tables (Tables A-16, A-17 and A-18) indicate a slow bias in each subsample. For the weak subsample, a high percentage of two-class errors occurs at all the three forecast intervals, especially at 24 h (50%). Although this slow bias is less prevalent in the intense subsample, the AT M scores are higher than those of the moderate group at

each time interval. The lower M scores in the moderate subsample are due to the lower number of one-class errors, even though at 72 h there is a high percentage (31.1%) of two-class errors in which the NTCM is slower than the best track (Table A-18).

The systematic errors for the NTCM (Table 12) indicate that there is little or no systematic growth in longitudinal (ΣX) errors in the moderate and weak subsamples. The NTCM position in both cases is east (73 km and 50 km for the weak and moderate subsamples, respectively) of the average best-track position at 12 h and remains almost constant with increasing time. However, a large systematic growth in longitudinal error occurs in the intense subsample. The zonal error (ΣX) increases from 16 to -150 km monotonically with time, which indicates that the average NTCM position becomes farther west of the best track with increasing forecast period for those intense storms. Only a small meridional error (ΣY) is found for the different storm intensities. The 72-h NTCM forecasts are slightly to the south of the best track for the weak and moderate subsamples and slightly to the north in the moderate subsample.

Forecast errors of the NTCM in the moderate subsample are much smaller than those of CLIPER beyond 12 h (Tables 12 and 13). The NTCM mean and median forecast errors in the intense subsample are about the same as in the moderate subsample, even though the CT and AT results seem to indicate much lower directional and speed errors for the moderate subsample. A possible explanation for this result is that the accuracy of the initial position from fixes by any platform (aircraft, satellite or radar) is much greater for cyclones that have developed an eye (or at least a well-defined circulation center). Since initial position errors are propagated along the forecast track, the NTCM mean and median forecast errors for the intense subsample should be smaller than those of the weak or moderate subsamples by virtue of better initial position inputs. The CLIPER (which should be unbiased with respect to storm-related parameters) mean and median forecast errors also decrease markedly from weak to intense subsamples (Table 13), which supports this argument. In addition, the CT and AT M scores indicate that the NTCM predicts the storm direction and speed much more accurately for moderate storms than for either weak or intense storms. Finally, the weak subsample has much larger mean and median forecast errors (as well as higher CT and AT M scores) than the other subsamples throughout the entire forecast period. Thus, the 60-kt specification of the NTCM storm bogus may be inappropriate for weak storms.

E. PAST 12-HOUR INTENSITY CHANGE EFFECTS

The three subsamples of NTCM forecasts are classified as weakening (past 12-h intensity change, or " Δ intensity" ≤ 0 kt), intensifying (Δ intensity 5 and 10 kt) and rapidly intensifying (Δ intensity ≥ 15 kt). As indicated earlier, the number of forecasts (Table 14) is not equally distributed among the three categories due to the small range of possible Δ -intensity values.

The NTCM CT M scores are the lowest for the rapidly intensifying storms (Table 14) at all forecast periods, although the intensifying storms had CT M scores almost as low at 72 h. The AT M scores for the rapid intensifiers were much lower (more than 10 points at all three forecast periods) than those of the weakening storms. These results indicate that the NTCM forecasts direction and speed more accurately for storms that are intensifying (slowly or rapidly) than for weakening storms.

The NTCM mean and median forecast errors (Table 15) follow the same pattern as the CT and AT M scores. That is, the errors for the rapidly intensifying storms are much smaller than those of the weakening storms (more than 100 km smaller mean and median errors at 72 h). The trend of decreasing mean and median forecast errors from weakening to intensifying to rapidly intensifying subsamples holds for all forecast periods except between 12 and 36 h. For these periods, the median forecast errors increase slightly for the intensifying storms, and then decrease for the rapid intensifiers (Table 15).

Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM forecasts stratified by past 12-h intensity change.

	Δlr	otensity	y ≤ 0 k	nots	Δ Inte	nsity 5	to 10	knots	Δ Int	ensity .	≥ 15 k	nots	
	0%	%1	%2	Ν	0%	1%	%2	W	0%	1%	%2	W	
ರ	46.3	41.6	12.1	65.8	42.0	42.0	16.0	74.0	43.4	51.5	5.1	61.7	
24 h AT	39.5	40.5	20.0	80.5	 49.1	37.3	13.6	64.5	42.4	46.5	11.1	68.7	_
5	50.5	39.5	10.0	59.5	51.5	38.5	10.0	58.5	55.6	37.4	7.1	51.6	
48 h AT	44.7	40.0	15.3	70.6	52.7	37.3	10.0	57.3	53.5	40.4	6.1	52.6	
ษ	44.2	42.1	13.7	69.5	53.3	34.9	11.8	58.5	55.6	35.3	9.1	53.5	
72 h AT	48.4	36.3	15.3	6.99	54.4	37.9	7.7	53.3	56.6	35.3	8.1	51.5	
	No.	n Subs	ample	= 190	No.	Subs	ample	= 169	No. i	n Subs	sample	= 99	-

Barrance Should be

No.

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for NTCM forecasts stratified by past 12-h intensity change.

Δ Intens	ltens	Ë,	/ ≤ 0 kı	nots	7	∆ Inten	sity 5	to 10 k	cnots	Δ Int	ensity	≥ 151	cnots	
ΣX ΣY Mn Md	ΣΥ Mn Md	Mn Md	ΡW	_		ΣX	Σү	Mn	Md	ΣΧ	ΣY	Mn	рМ	
34 4 138 121	4 138 121	138 121	121			43	3	146	130	61	-6	114	106	
53 8 239 202	8 239 202	239 202	202	decourse a decourse		46	-3	225	193	76	-13	195	183	
49 14 313 266	14 313 266	313 266	266			21	0	303	277	62	۲ <u>۔</u>	267	239	
24 -4 413 357	-4 413 357	413 357	357			-3	-22	396	348	48	-20	348	326	
19 11 535 510	11 535 510	535 510	510	1999-1996-1996-1996-1996-1996-1996-1996		-34	8	503	439	38	-3	448	379	
7 -9 662 633	-9 662 633	662 633	633	and a second		-54	17	613	537	34	2	553	489	
No in Subsample = 190	Subsample = 190	amnle = 190	= 190	-		ni No	Subs	ample	= 169	No.	n Sul	bsampl	e = 99	

NAMES OF STREET

ككدددد

 \mathcal{A}

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for CLIPER forecasts stratified by past 12-h intensity change.

= 99	sample	n Sub	No. i	-	= 169	sample	Subs	No. in	0	= 19	sample	in Sub	No.	
616	695	135	29		595	735	142	28		605	782	135	168	72 h
473	557	115	14		508	605	129	25		480	622	133	144	60 h
349	425	87	4		396	469	100	24		363	474	611	119	48 h
266	309	62	۲-		281	337	74	2		249	334	60	77	36 h
144	187	36	-12		182	217	48	-S		162	199	56	29	24 h
70	89	17	89		97	118	23	8-		83	96	25	0	12 h
PW	Mn	۲۲	ΣX		рW	Mn	ΣΥ	ΣX		Md	Mn	ΣΥ	ΣX	
nots	≥ 15 k	ensity	Δ Int		knots	5 to 10	nsity 5	Δ Inte		nots	y ≤ 0 k	ntensit	ΔI	

語言のないたと

The meridional (ΣY) errors (Table 15) for all three categories had small values, which indicates that no north-south systematic errors exist in the three subsamples. As the zonal (ΣX) errors for the intensifying storms decrease nearly linearly from 24 h (46 km) to 72 h (-54 km), the NTCM position is initially east of the best-track longitude ("slow" for east to west-moving storms), and becomes west of the best track by 72 h. This may be a function of the initial slow bias of the NTCM, which would cause the point of recurvature to be forecast too late (Sandgathe, 1985). By contrast, the rapidly intensifying storms have a small and nearly constant (from 61 to 34 km) zonal bias. In this case, the initial slow bias in the NTCM forecasts is carried throughout the forecast period. A statistical scheme to remove the initial slow bias of the NTCM should result in a reduction in errors.

annesses addates by him highladd hydroly

The CLIPER mean, and especially the median forecast errors (Table 16) have smaller differences among the three categories. For example, the median forecast errors at 72 h are 605, 595 and 616 km for the weakening, intensifying and rapidly intensifying storms. The relatively small differences in forecast errors between categories is seen at the 12-through 60-h forecast periods as well. In addition, the mean and median forecast errors for each category are within 35 km of the total error statistics (Table 4) at every time period except 72 h, when the mean forecast error for the weakening category is 52 km larger than the total sample mean. This result indicates that the CLIPER forecasts are not affected by changes in the past 12-h intensity trend.

Compared to the CLIPER errors, the NTCM error statistics all indicate that the NTCM has much more skill at the 36- to 72-h periods for both intensifying and rapidly intensifying categories. For example, the NTCM median and mean forecast errors at 72 h are 142 and 127 km lower than the CLIPER in the rapidly intensifying category. On the other hand, the median 72-h forecast error for the NTCM is 28 km higher than the CLIPER for the weakening category. Since the NTCM mean forecast error at 72 h for weakening storms is 120 km smaller than the CLIPER error, the NTCM evidently has

fewer very large errors in its forecasts compared to CLIPER, which has a slightly lower median forecast error at 72 h.

In summary, each of the error measures suggests that the NTCM is much more skillful in forecasting intensifying storms (both slow and rapid) than weakening storms. The marked difference between rapid intensifiers and weakening storms in both CT/AT M scores and mean/median forecast errors suggest that the performance of the NTCM is significantly affected by the past 12-h intensity trend as well as the initial intensity.

F. SIZE EFFECTS

The sample of NTCM forecasts is divided by the initial size (radius of 30-kt winds) into categories of "small" (size ≤ 100 n.mi), "medium" (size 105 to 205 n.mi) and "large" (size ≥ 210 n.mi). Although the AT M scores (Table 17) do not vary much between categories, they are the lowest in the large category. In fact, these scores among the three categories vary by only four points at 72 h and 10 points at the 48 h. This suggests that the initial size parameter has a diminishing effect with time on the speed forecast (AT component) of the NTCM.

The lowest CT M scores for the NTCM are found in the small category, where the 72-h M score is more than 10 points lower than either the medium or large categories (Table 17). Notice that the largest percentages of two-class CT errors at the 48 and 72 h time periods occur in the large subsample. Inspection of the 48- and 72-h CT contingency tables (Tables A-26 and A-27) reveals that a very large number of one- and two-class errors are located in the lower left bins of the large (size > 210 n.mi) subsample. A majority of the forecasts in the lower left bin of the contingency table indicates that the NTCM forecast track falls far to the left of the best track more frequently than it does to the right of the track (68 left versus 28 right at 48 h, and 71 left versus 24 right at 72 h).

Cross-track and along-track percent class errors and M scores for NTCM forecasts stratified by size (radius of 30-kt winds in n. mi).

MOD M	Size ≤	ze ≤	10)5 n. m ا ∞ ا	Т	_	Size	110 to	205 n	, mi		Si	ze ≥ 2 ∞,1	10 n. n 2 2	ii M
40.9 48.6 10.5 69.6 43.4 46.3 10.3 66.9 43.1 42.0 14.9 71.8 47.4 41.7 10.9 63.5 54.7 35.4 9.9 55.2 45.1 44.0 10.9 65.8 54.7 35.4 9.9 55.2 45.1 44.0 10.9 65.8 50.8 39.8 9.4 58.6 49.7 42.3 8.0 58.3 46.4 41.4 12.2 65.8 45.1 41.2 13.7 68.6 50.8 39.3 9.9 59.1 53.7 37.2 9.1 55.4	W 7% 1% 0%	W 70% 10%	W 70%	Σ	and the second sec		D.0%	10%	70%	M		Dox	10/	70/	E
43.1 42.0 14.9 71.8 47.4 41.7 10.9 63.5 54.7 35.4 9.9 55.2 45.1 44.0 10.9 65.8 54.7 35.4 9.9 55.2 45.1 44.0 10.9 65.8 50.8 39.8 9.4 58.6 49.7 42.3 8.0 58.3 46.4 41.4 12.2 65.8 45.1 41.2 13.7 68.6 50.8 39.3 9.9 59.1 53.7 37.2 9.1 55.4	46.2 39.3 14.5 68.3	39.3 14.5 68.3	14.5 68.3	68.3			40.9	48.6	10.5	69.6		43.4	46.3	10.3	66.9
54.7 35.4 9.9 55.2 45.1 44.0 10.9 65.8 50.8 39.8 9.4 58.6 49.7 42.3 8.0 58.3 46.4 41.4 12.2 65.8 45.1 41.2 13.7 68.6 50.8 39.3 9.9 59.1 53.7 37.2 9.1 55.4	42.5 38.1 19.4 76.9	38.1 19.4 76.9	19.4 76.9	76.9			43.1	42.0	14.9	71.8		47.4	41.7	10.9	63.5
50.8 39.8 9.4 58.6 49.7 42.3 8.0 58.3 46.4 41.4 12.2 65.8 45.1 41.2 13.7 68.6 50.8 39.3 9.9 59.1 53.7 37.2 9.1 55.4	54.8 37.1 8.1 53.3	37.1 8.1 53.3	8.1 53.3	53.3	<u></u>		54.7	35.4	9.9	55.2		45.1	44.0	10.9	65.8
46.4 41.4 12.2 65.8 45.1 41.2 13.7 68.6 50.8 39.3 9.9 59.1 53.7 37.2 9.1 55.4	47.8 36.6 15.6 67.8	36.6 15.6 67.8	15.6 67.8	67.8		•	50.8	39.8	9.4	58.6	•	49.7	42.3	8.0	58.3
50.8 39.3 9.9 59.1 53.7 37.2 9.1 55.4	54.8 36.6 8.6 53.8	36.6 8.6 53.8	8.6 53.8	53.8	8		46.4	41.4	12.2	65.8		45.1	41.2	13.7	68.6
	53.8 32.8 13.4 59.6	32.8 13.4 59.6	13.4 59.6	59.6			50.8	39.3	6.6	59.1		53.7	37.2	9.1	55.4

بالالالالاليانية

Mean (Mn), median (Md), and systematic errors (km) for NTCM forecasts stratified by size (radius of 30-kt winds in n. mi).

, 	PW	107	162	232	323	406	498	= 175
10 n. m	Mn	119	188	260	351	468	597	ample =
ize ≥ 21	ΣX	ő	6-	-7	4	26	2	a Subsi
Ś	ΣX	24	6	L-	-59	-85	-121	No. ir
ı. mi	PM	117	198	273	353	457	575	= 181
o 205 n	Mn	132	225	300	397	512	618	ample
: 110 te	Σү	S	-3	2	-17	4	13	n Subs
Size	Σx	49	64	44	34	25	18	No. ii
ni	рМ	147	239	291	368	496	582	= 186
05 n. n	Mn	159	260	340	441	541	661	ample
ize ≤ 1	ΣΥ	8	6	12	-27	-37	-41	Subs
S	ΣΧ	65	106	96	72	81	75	No.
		12 h	24 h	36 h	48 h	4 09	72 h	

REAL REPORT REPORT

Victoria de Se

Mean (Mn), medan (Md), and systematic errors (km) for CLIPER forecasts stratified by size (radius of 30-kt winds in n. mi).

m	РМ	77	154	238	334	411	480	= 175
210 n.	Mn	91	179	283	380	484	592	ample
ize ≥ 3	ΣΥ	18	44	83	119	138	123	Subs
ŝ	ΣX	-6	-2	15	34	45	38	No. in
ı. mi	рМ	84	168	280	389	523	673	= 181
0 205 1	Mn	98	198	331	478	634	792	sample
: 110 to	ΣΥ	21	43	67	88	103	115	n Sub:
Size	ΣX	-15	-23	-22	-21	-32	-28	No. i
		•						
л.	рМ	102	215	293	414	525	644	= 18(
05 n. n	Mn	130	240	370	510	652	66 L	ample
ze ≤ 1(ΣY	25	53	68	83	105	126	n Subs
Si	ΣΧ	4	32	72	108	128	154	40.
		12 h	24 h	36 h	48 h	4 09	72 h]

66

left of the best track. A possible explanation of this bias to the left of the best track is that the NTCM tends to forecast straight tracks for large (probably recurving) storms. As a westward-moving storm begins to turn to the northwest, a straight forecast would produce large negative (left) CT components. In addition, a forecast that recurves the storm too late will also produce negative CT components. This was observed in the case of Typhoon Abby during 1983, which began to recurve around the western periphery of the subtropical ridge soon after it formed. Although the NTCM (as well as the other objective aids) continually forecast Abby to move west-northwest, this storm produced some of the largest forecast errors in this data set and many of the left of track one- and two-class CT errors in the large category (Tables A-25 through A-27). のなどなどな問題のないないない。

The mean and median forecast errors of the NTCM (Table 18) seem to contradict the above findings. That is, the mean and median forecast errors are largest for the small category and decrease from the small to large categories (this applies to CLIPER as well). However, the mean and median forecast errors do not vary much among the three categories (90 km or less at all time periods) compared to the differences found between categories of the other storm-related parameters. The lower forecast errors for the large category may be due to more accurate initial positions and working-best-tracks for the large storms. This reasoning assumes that the fix accuracy for very large (or intense) tropical cyclones is higher than for small systems due to better-defined central features. While there are cases of intense storms that have very small radii of 30-kt winds, it is generally held that the size of tropical cyclones generally increases with intensity. Thus, smaller errors in initial position result in smaller errors propagated along the forecast track. In addition, the frequency of fixes is higher for very large or intense storms because the JTWC places higher priority on tasking satellite coverage and aircraft reconnaissance for such potentially destructive systems. Because of resource limitations less threatening storms often receive less coverage in terms of fix data during multiple-storm situations.

Only the zonal (ΣX) errors in the large category (Table 18) show a systematic change with forecast period from 24 km east of the best track to 121 km west of best track. As described above, this increase in the zonal error is interpreted as a NTCM forecast track continuing westward while the storm is tending to recurve to the north. The zonal errors for the small and medium sizes tend to be large from the initial time and do not systematically grow, which suggests difficulties with initializing the NTCM. The meridional (ΣY) errors for the small storms (Table 18) have a very small systematic trend from north (8 km) to south (-41 km) of the best track position, but no systematic change for the medium and large storms.

The CLIPER mean and median forecast errors (Table 19) also indicate distinctly smaller forecast errors for the large category. The mean and median CLIPER errors at 72 h for the large storms are 200 and 164 km smaller than those for the medium storms. This sensitivity of the CLIPER to the size parameter may also be traced in part to smaller initial positioning errors. Notice that the NTCM forecast errors at 72 h are slightly larger than the CLIPER errors for the large category. By contrast, the NTCM mean and median forecast errors at 72 h for the small and medium categories are smaller than the CLIPER errors by at least 98 km (Tables 18 and 19) at all forecast intervals. This suggests that the NTCM shows a higher skill level for small and medium storms than for large storms relative to CLIPER, even though the actual error magnitudes are smaller for the large storms.

In summary, the CT M scores and contingency tables indicate that the NTCM forecast tracks for large storms are left of the best track much more often than they are to the right. In addition, the NTCM has slightly higher forecast errors at 72 h for large storms than the CLIPER, which indicates that the NTCM has little skill in this category. Although the forecast errors are slightly larger for the small and medium storms, they are much smaller than the CLIPER errors, which indicates a higher level of skill. In addition, there is a large

systematic decrease in the zonal (ΣX) component for large storms, so that the NTCM forecast becomes farther west of the best track with forecast period.

It should be noted that the radius of 30-kt winds may not be an accurate representation of the size. The infrequency of wind field measurements make this storm-related parameter the most subjective of the five. In many cases, aircraft peripheral data or synoptic data from ships or islands close to the storm are not available, and the TDO must extrapolate the size from the most recent data available, or estimate the size from satellite imagery. An objective method for determining storm size would be desirable to facilitate the use of such data in future studies.
VI. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Various error statistics for evaluating the effects of storm-related parameters on the NTCM are applied to a sample of 542 NTCM forecasts during 1981-1983. A new technique for computing the cross-track (CT) and along-track (AT) error components relative to CLIPER forecast positions is found to be very effective for evaluating the errors in a storm-oriented frame of reference. The best-track CT components at each forecast period are distributed normally about the respective extrapolated CLIPER tracks. The NTCM CT and AT errors are related to true storm movement (left or right, and slow or fast) by comparison in contingency tables with the verifying best-track positions. An M score is used to distill the information from each contingency table into a single penalty score. The mean and median forecast errors and the systematic errors are also calculated. The statistics of the total sample (1981 through 1983) for the western North Pacific indicate a slow bias in the NTCM forecasts, especially at the early (12 to 36 h) forecast periods.

The NTCM forecasts are evaluated within terciles for five initial storm-related parameters (latitude, longitude, intensity, intensity trend and size). For storms with initial latitudes south of 13° N, the NTCM predicts the direction and speed of storms much better than for storms north of 13° N. The forecast errors are lower for the southern storms as well. By contrast, the NTCM performs relatively poorly at 72 h for storms with initial latitudes north of 17° N. The CT errors for the northern storms were especially large at 48 and 72 h. The systematic errors and contingency tables indicate that the NTCM has a large westward and left-of-track bias, which suggests that the NTCM is slow in forecasting recurvature for storms in the northern area. The NTCM performs better for storms with initial longitudes west of 129° E. Low CT M scores (only 43.8 at 48 h) and forecast errors

for the NTCM in this region are thought to be a function of the data availability of the western area relative to the areas farther east.

NTCM forecasts of storms with initial intensities between 50 and 75 kt (moderate category) are found to have much better CT/AT performance characteristics than weak or intense categories of storms. The CT contingency tables indicate the NTCM has no bias left or right of the best track in the moderate category, whereas the weak storms are more often forecast to the right of best track and intense storms to the left. In agreement with the CT/AT statistics, the forecast errors for the moderate category are also relatively small. The results support the expectation that the NTCM would perform better on storms with initial intensities more closely resembling that of the fixed-intensity bogus storm. It is therefore recommended that a variable intensity storm bogus to agree with the actual intensity be evaluated as an upgrade to the NTCM. The NTCM has lower CT and AT M scores, and lower forecast errors, for intensifying storms than for weakening storms. An initial slow bias in the NTCM forecasts tends to be carried throughout the forecast period for storms in the rapidly intensifying category.

The radius of 30-kt winds from the JTWC warnings, which is used as a measure of storm size, is a relatively subjective measure because no objective technique exists for estimating the radius in the absence of peripheral data. The NTCM forecasts for very large storms are to the left of the best track much more often than to the right. A large systematic decrease with increasing forecast period of the zonal (ΣX) error component also suggests that the NTCM does not show a high degree of skill in forecasting the recurvature of large systems. The NTCM shows no improvement in the mean and median forecasts errors relative to the CLIPER for the large category, despite having slightly lower errors than the small and medium categories.

These results provide the Typhoon Duty Officer valuable information about the NTCM performance with respect to various storm-related parameters. It is recommend that similar studies be conducted to provide the same information about the One-way Tropical Cyclone Model (OTCM) and other dynamic forecast aids. These results should also be used to construct of a decision tree that will provide the TDO with a real-time evaluation of each forecast aid. Such a tool might contribute to reductions in track forecast errors of these destructive cyclones.

T STATES STATES & MANAGAN, PROPERTY STATES

APPENDIX: CROSS-TRACK (CT) AND ALONG-TRACK (AT) CONTINGENCY TABLES

AND

PERCENTAGE OF ONE-, TWO- AND THREE-CLASS ERROR TABLES

Each table in the appendix contains three columns which correspond to different values of a storm-related parameter. Each column contains a three-by-three contingency table of CT or AT errors on the top row and a table of the percentage of of one-, two- and three-class errors on the bottom row. The contingency tables can be likened to a box with nine bins which contain the CT or AT error components of the NTCM forecasts compared with the best track positions. The forecasts and best-track positions are first referenced to a CLIPER track (either left, right, center or slow, fast, center) and then compared to each other in the contingency table. If, for example, an NTCM forecast is left of the CLIPER track and the best track is also left, the number of cases in the upper left bin of the CT contingency table is increased by one. This bin represents a number of zero-class errors, as do the other bins on the upper-left to lower-right diagonal. The upper-right and lower-left bins represent the number of two-class errors, and the remaining bins the one-class errors. The percentage of the class errors (with respect to the subsample in that column) are tabulated below the contingency tables. They show the percentage of CT (AT) class errors that occur left (slow), center, or right (fast) of the best track as well as the total percentage of class errors for the subsample.

The tables are organized in the following order:

I. Storm-related parameter

A. Cross-track error components

1. 24-h NTCM forecasts

2. 48-h NTCM forecasts

3. 72-h NTCM forecasts

B. Along-track error components

1. 24-h NTCM forecasts

2. 48-h NTCM forecasts

3. 72-h NTCM forecasts

TABLE A-1 Cross-track contingencies, percent class errors, and M scores for 24-h NTCM forecasts stratified by latitude

र |२

3

5

and and and an and an and an and an and an and an and

		ls										and a second
		Tota	47	66	69		82					
17° N	۲ ر	R	5	15	30	50	pie = 1 %2	10.6		21.7	11.0	- 70.3
rde 2	NTCN	ບ	21	23	24	68	Subsamı %1	44.7	65.2	34.8	48.3	core =
Latit		Ľ	21	28	15	64	mber in %0	44.7	34.9	43.5	40.7	M
		-	L.	C	R	Totals	N	L	່ ບ	æ	Totals	
z		Fotals	63	53	61	75	2					
o 17°		R	16	19	30	65	s = 17 [°] %2	25.4		11.5	13.0	70.6
13° t	VTCM	ບ	26	24	24	74	ubsample % 1	41.3	54.7	39.3	44.6	core =
itude	4	Г	21	10	6	38	ber in S %0	33.3	45.3	49.2	42.4	M Se
La				υ	~	Totals	Num	Ľ	ັບ	X	Totals	
		fotals	67	60	56	87				2000-00-00 CO		
13° N		R	14	19	23	56	= 183 %2	20.9		12.5	11.5	64.0
de <	NTCM	ပ	19	30	26	75	ıbsample % 1	28.4	50.0	46.4	41.0	ore =
Latitu		Γ	34	11	7	52	ber in Sı %0	50.8	50.0	41.1	47.5	M Sc
			L_	C	×	Totals	Num	L	υ	x	Totals	
			Bes	t Tra	ck			R	est T	rack	e denora concerna	

(Best Track relative to CLIPER)

R > 50 km

C = -75 to 50 km;

L < -75 km;

Cut Points:

TABLE A-2 Same as A-1, except for 48 h

Ś.

		S	an an an an an an an Ar								and the source and the		
		Total	53	57	72	- 79	2 I			<u>``</u>			
N.		~	3	6	28	40	le = 1 %2	5.7		23.6	11.0	67.6	IPER)
de ≥ 1′	NTCM	ပ	18	19	27	64	Subsamp %1	34.0	66.7	37.5	45.6	core =	e to CL
Latitu			32	29	17	78	nber in %0	60.4	33.3	38.9	43.4	X	rclativ
		L	 	C	*	Totals	Nun	<u></u>	C	R	Totals		est Track
		otals	65		45	95							m (B
17° N		R T	6	14	25	*	s = 177 %2	13.9		15.6	9.0	55.3	: > 125 k
: 13° to	ITCM	ບ	27	41	13	<u>8</u>	ubsample % 1	41.5	38.8	28.9	37.3	core =	km: R
atitude	Z	Г	29	12	2	48	ther in S %0	44.6	61.2	55.6	53.7	M S	5 to 125
Ĺ		l	L I	່ <u>ບ</u>	~~~	Totals	Num	[U U	R	Totals	•	ر - 12 ر - 12
	*	tals	70	52	19	106	n para na sina di kata di Seria di Seri						JS km.
°N		R To	7	∞	20	35	= 183 %2	10.0		14.8	8.8	50.8	- \
de < 13	ITCM	c	11	34	32	11	ubsample %]	15.7	34.6	52.5	33.3	core =	Dointe.
Latituc	2	L	52	10	6	11	ber in Su %0	74.3	65.4	32.8	57.9	W S	Ĩ
		ļ			~~	L Totals	Numl	 _	0	×	Totals	•	

6.9

TABLE A-3 Same as A-1, except for 72-h.

たいとう

Harris and the second

المعطكمين

× × ×

DEPENDING INCOME.

TABLE A-4 Same as A-1, except for along-track 24-h.

												Annan ayar -	
	Cotals		64	72	46	93	182					7	
N °7			2	11	12	25	ple = %2	3.1	1	23.9	7.1	56.0	PER)
le ≥ 17	C TCM	, [13	32	23	68	Subsam % 1	20.3	55.6	50.0	41.8	sore =	10 CLI
Latituc	2 0	,	49	29	11	89	ımber in %0	76.6	44.4	26.1	51.1	W N	relative
			S	U	Ľ.	Totals	ž	S	C	ĨL,	Totals		it Track
z	Fotals		48	61 -	68	66 	7				***********	-	(Bes
0 1.7° 1	Ľ	<u> </u>	4	4	14	22	e∘= 17 %2	8.3		42.6	18.6	81.3	> 15 kn
e 13° t	, TCM	- ار	12	20	25	57	ubsampl%1	25.0	67.2	36.8	44.1	ore =	km: F
atitud	z v		32	37	29	98	ther in S %0	66.7	32.8	20.6	37.3	M Sc	5 to 15
Τ		L	. . .	<u>ں</u>	<u>ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ</u>	Fotals	Nun	S	C	ĹŢ.	otals	-	C = -13
						-					-		1 2
	1000	I OLAIS	63	54	8	81 7	e,				E		-125 km
13° N	н Т. Т.		8 63	10 54	25 66	43 81 1	le = 183 %2	12.7		42.4	19.7	75.4	S < -125 km
itude < 13° N	NTCM C F Toule		16 8 63	17 10 54	13 25 66	46 43 81 1	Subsample = 183 %1 . %2	25.4 12.7	68.5	19.7 42.4	36.0 19.7	ore = 75.4	it Points: S < -125 km
Latitude < 13° N	NTCM NTCM R Totale		39 16 8 63	27 17 10 54	28 13 25 66	94 46 43 81 7	mber in Subsample = 183 %0 %1 . %2	61.9 25.4 12.7	31.5 68.5	37.9 19.7 42.4	44.3 36.0 19.7	M Score = 75.4	Cut Points: S < -125 km
Latitude < 13° N			S 39 16 8 63	C 27 17 10 54	F 28 13 25 66	Totals 94 46 43 81 7	Number in Subsample = 183 %0 %1 · %2	S 61.9 25.4 12.7	C 31.5 68.5	F 37.9 19.7 42.4	Totals 44.3 36.0 19.7	M Score = 75.4	Cut Points: S < -175 km

77

TABLE A-5 Same as A-4, except for 48 h.

ļ

-		Latit	ude < 1	13° N		La	ıtitude	13° to	17° N			Latitu	ide ≥ 1	7° N	
8			NTCM				Z	TCM					VTCM		
-	•	S	c	F	rotals	I	S	с С	F I	otals		S	υ	F	otals
	S	50	17	3	70	S	31	20	S	56	ŝ	35	14	3	52
	U	22	24	14	1 <u>8</u>	<u> </u>	20	16	∞	4	C	24	33	19	76
	ĹĹ,	17	13	23	53	<u>Г</u>	24	21	32	11	<u>ل</u> تــ	8	22	24	54
	Totals	89	54	64	97	Totals	75	57	45	79	Totals	67	69	46	92
	Nun	aber in S %0	ubsample %1	: = 183 %2		Num	oer in Sv %0	ubsample % 1	= 177 %2	. [Nun	nber in %0	Subsampl %1	c = 18 %2	0 r
	S	71.4	24.3	4.3		S	55.4	35.7	8.9		S	67.3	26.9	5.8	
	U	40.0	60.0			C	36.4	63.6			с 	43.4	56.6	:	
	Ľ,	43.4	24.5	32.1		ц	41.6	27.3	31.2		ц	44.4	40.7	14.8	
	Totals	53.0	36.1	10.9		Totals	44.6	39.0	16.4		Totals	50.6	43.4	6.0	
		M S	core =	57.9.	00000000		Σ	Score =	- 71.8			Σ	Score =	= 55.4	
		C	t Points:	S < -2	75 km;	C = -275	to -25	km; F ,	• -25 kn	л (Be	st Track	relative	to CLI	PER)	

1933939231

S < -275 km;

Cut Points:

TABLE A-6 Same as A-4, except for 72 h.

		tals		0		ñ					****		elecciel (
7		Ţ	3	7 7	2 6	6	182	25	7.3	:	٢.	.3	8.2
17° l		щ		1.	36	26	iple =	8			19	5	= 5
de ⊳	ITCM	ပ	19	35	18	72	Subsam	%1	46.3	50.0	25.4	39.6	Score
Latituc	2	S	19	18	14	51	nber in	%0	46.3	50.0	54.9	51.1	Σ
		L	S	C	íĽ,	Totals	Nui		S	C	Ц	Totals	-
		otals	62	46	69	94	_						
17° N		F	4	7	29	6	= 177	%2	6.5		29.0	13.6	60.5
13° to	TCM	U	22	29	20	71	ibsample	%1	.35.5	37.0	29.0	33.3	eore =
atitude	Z	S	36	10	20	66	oer in Su	%0	58.1	63.0	42.0	53.1	M Sc
Ľ			S.	C	<u> </u>	otals	Numl	L	S	ີບ	Ľ	fotals	I
					·····	L							
		Total	80	61	42	66	83	1	·				-
: 13° N		ц	9	21	20	47	le = 11	%2	7.5		28.6	9.8	- 55.7
tude <	NTCM	c	18	23	10	51	ubsamp	%1	22.5	62.3	23.8	36.1	core =
Lati		S	56	17	12	85	aber in S	% 0	70.0	37.7	47.6	54.1	MS
			S	C	ļī,	Totals	Nun		S	U U	ĹĽ.,	[] Totals	1
		6.000.0000	Be	st Tr	ack				E	Best 7	Frack		iller to

TABLE A-7 Same as A-1, except for cross-track 24 h stratified by longitude.



80

TABLE A-8 Same as A-7, except for 48 h.

		Long	itude <	129° I	(1)	Lon	gitude	129° t	o 140°	Ш		Jongiti	l ≤ ∋l	40° E	
			NTCM					VTCM					NTCM		
		Γ	ပ	R	Totals		L	C	R	otals		L	c	R	Fotals
Bes	L -	24	18	3	45	<u>г</u>	30	17	4	51	Ľ	59	21	12	92
t Trad	C	6	50	15	74	် ပ	25	26	6	09	C	17	18	7	42
ck	R	-	24	25	50	~	21	24	30	<u></u> 75	R	11	24	18	53
	Totals	34	92	43	66	Totals	76	67	43	86	Totals	87	63	37	95
	Ñ	mber in ? %0	Subsampl % 1	e = 169 %2		Nun	ber in S %0	ubsample %1	= 186 %2		Nur	mber in : %0	Subsampl %1	le = 18 %2	2
	r	53.3	40.0	6.7		Г	58.8	33.3	7.8		L	64.1	22.8	13.0	
Best	C	67.7	32.4		*********	υ.	43.3	56.7	1		C	42.9	57.1		
Trac	R	50.0	48.0	2.0		X	40.0	32.0	28.0		R	34.0	45.3	20.8	
	Totals	58.6	39.0	2.4		Totals	46.2	40.3	13.4		Totals	50.8	36.9	12.3	
		M Si Cut	core = Points:	43.8 L < -12	15 km:	 C = -125	M S 125 1	score =	- 67.1 > 125 kn		it Track	M S relative	core =	61.5 PER)	

•

TABLE A-9 Same as A-7, except for 72 h.

		s				~~~~~				er her en en er	*******************		an a
	Ę	lota	80	50	57	10	187						l
40° E	~	4	10	6	26	45	ple =	%2	12.5		22.8	12.3	54.5
lde ≥ 1	ر ۱TCM	, [13	25	18	56	Subsam	%1	16.3	50.0	31.6	29.9	ore =
ongitu		ŗ	57	16	13	86	nber in	%0	71.3	50.0	45.6	57.8	M Sc
ſ		L	I	U	~~	Totals	Nur		L	C	R	Totals	• • • • •
сц	sl	2	00		· .		and the second						
140°]	Tota	٢	4 4	3	2	4	= 186	%2	8.3		5.1	6.1	4.7
° to	ν Γ				5	4	nple	61	5	- -	4 3	5 1	1/ =
e 129	LCN VICN	۱	18	24	21	63	Subsar	0	37.	62.	28.	42.	core
gitud	-	٦ ۲	26	27	26	- 6L	nber in	%	54.2	37.5	36.5	41.4	M S
Lor		Ĺ	L	<u> </u>	~~	Totals	Nun		<u>ר</u>	C	R	Totals	
(T)	otals	1910	52	59	58	80	-						······································
129° 1	_ ~	•	5	11	25	41	e = 169	%2	9.6		6.9	5.3	57.9
itude <	NTCM C	, [27	35	29	16	ubsampl	%1	51.9	40.7	50.0	47.3	core =
Long	L L	• [20	13	4	37	nber in S	0%	38.5	59.3	43.1	47.4	M St
		b		U	Å	Totals	Nur		L	່ ບ	×	Totals	
			Bes	st Tra	ck	000000000000	******		Be	est T	rack	*****	

TABLE A-10 Same as A-7, except for along-track 24 h.

10000												or conserver or a		
		Totals	64	52	11	95	37	Г					ľ	
40° E		н	12	6	32	50	₩ ₩ ₩	7.%	18.8		28.2	17.1	66.3	2
le ≥ 1⁄	TCM	c	14	25	19	58	bsample	- %	21.9	51.9	26.8	32.1	ore =	CLIPEI
ngituc	Z	S	38	21	20	- 62	er in Su	0%	59.4	48.1	45.1	50.8	M Sc	tive to
Lo			S	U U	<u>ц</u>	fotals '	dmuN	L	S	U	۲.	Fotals	l	rack rela
		6		Maar 10 000	the second state of the	-	an na sana ang	or er er	Maraka terakan dari ter	ana		e -	á se	est Ti
ш		Total	53	99	67	83	9	[0	<u>,</u>	3	5	6	B
, 140		щ	0	6	10	16	= 18	%2	0		40.	14.	- 69.	l5 km
9° to	M		ý			<u> </u>	imple	%1	11.3	60.6	44.8	40.9	ore =	- E
le 12	NTC	0		26	30	62	Subsa	0	r.	4	6.	9.	1 Sc	km:
gituc		S	47	34	27	108	ber in	0	88	39	14	44	2	to 15
Lon			s	C	<u>ا</u> تتر	otals	Num		S	C	Ľ.	Totals		= -125
		<i></i>		Sector Contraction		H.						and a subscription of the		ט :-
[7]		Total	58	69	42	62	•	r					1	25 kn
129° I		н	2	13	6	24	= 169	%2	3.5		50.0	13.6	76.9	
ude <	NTCM	С	21	18	12	51	bsample	%1	36.2	73.9	28.6	49.2	core =	Ainte.
ongit		S	35	38	21	2	er in Su	%0	60.3	26.1	21.4	36.7	M S	1
I		l	S	C	<u>[.</u> [L]	[otals	Numb	L	S	J	Щ	Totals		
		nnonool ci	Bes	t Tra	ck			******	Be	st Ti	rack		******	

TABLE A-11 Same as A-10 except for 48 h.

Ľ

CONTRACT A

anter adated actualed anternal buyeries above

L	and the second second		2000 A 40		3	nnıığıı	171	140	1		Longit	ude ⊳	140° E	
L	~ (NTCM	ţ			2 0	VTCM	н Ц			د	NTCM	۔ ۲	
	∽[ပ	<u>т</u> ,	Fotals			ا ر	<u></u>	01415		2	с Г	- -	otals
s v	42	12	3	57	S	38	14	3	55	S	36	25	5	66
ບ ບ	25	22	10	57	C	30	29	16	75	C	11	22	15	48
<u> </u>	22	17	16	55	íĽ,	12	22	22	56	ц	15	17	41	73
ials _	68	51	29	80	Totals	80	65	41	89	Total	s 62	64	61	. 66
Numb	er in 1	Subsamp	le = 16	6	'n	mber in S	Subsampl	c = 18	9	z	umber in	Subsam	ple = 1	87
•	0%	% 1	<i>%</i> 2			0%	%1	%2			% 0	%1	% 2	
S 7	3.7	21.1	5.3		S	69 [.] 1	25.5	5.5		S	54.6	37.9	7.6	
C 3	8.6	61.4			ບ 	38.7	61.3			с	45.8	54.2		
F 2	9.1	30.9	40.0		۲ <u>ـ</u> ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	39.3	39.3	21.4		Ľ,	56.2	23.3	20.6	
tals 4	7.3	37.9	14.8		Totals	47.9	44.1	8.0		Totals	52.9	36.4	10.7	
2	A Sco	ore =	67.4		1	M So	core =	60.1			M	core =	57.8	

TABLE A-12 Same as A-10 except for 72 h

AND THE TREATER SEPARATE PRESS AND

		Long	itude <	129° I	(T)	Lon	gitude	s 129°	to 140	ε		Longi	tude ≥	140° I	(7)
			NTCM		******			NTCM					NTCM		
		S	С	ц	Totals	•	S	U	щ.	fotals		S	υ	ц	Totals
	S	46	12	1	59	S	22	32	3	57	S	43	15	6	
		11	27	12	50	C	22	34	10	99	<u>с</u>	12	26	23	19
	Щ	21	24	15	09	<u>ا</u> تم	10	16	37	1 <u>8</u>		15	8	36	59
Τo	tal:	s 78	63	28	88	Totals	54	82	50	93	Totals	70	49	68	105
	л. Л	mber in ; %0	Subsampl %1	e = 16 %2	6	Nun	ber in 9%	Subsampl	e = 18 %2	۲ ۲	'nZ	mber in %0	Subsamp %1	ie = 1 %2	87
	S	78.0	20.3	1.7		S	38.6	56.1	5.	~	S	64.2	22.4	13.4	
	U	54.0	46.0			C	51.5	48.5			с 	42.6	57.4		
	Ц	25.0	40.0	35.0		ĹĨ.	58.7	25.4	15.9		۲. 	61.0	13.6	25.4	
Tot	sle	52.1	34.9	13.0		Totals	50.0	43.0	7.(Totals	56.2	31.0	12.8	
	_	W	core =	6.09			W	score =	= 57.0			Σ	Score =	= 56.6	
		Ĉ	t Points.	5	-400 km:	C = 4)0 to -5() km:	F > -50	km (B.	lest Trach	rclativ	e to CL	IPER)	I

TABLE A-13 Same as A-1, except for cross-track 24 h stratified by intensity

		a da antigada antiga	and an a second	200 marca	galy and a state of the second	andre staat de	ere deservedes	antitette ta anti-	Sector Contraction of the	and and a second	
	fotals	48	64	66	73 178						1
to kts.	R	4	12	28	44 ple = 1	%2	8.3		19.7	9.6	68.6
ity ≥ 8	VTCM C	22	23	25	70 Subsam	%1	45.8	64.1	37.9	49.4	core =
Intens	L N	22	29	13	64 mber in	%0	45.8	35.9	42.4	41.0	M S
			U	2	Totals Nu		L	C	R	Totals	- i
	als	0					**************				
'5 kts.	τ ₀₁	6	23 6	5	18 85 = 182	%2	15.0		10.5	8.3	8.4
0 to 7	M				ample	61	5.0	9.2	3.9	8.	II II II
ity 5(NTC	21	33	. 25	79 Subs	6) 3:	8 4	5 4	4	Score
Itensi	۲ _	30	6	6	45 aber in	%(50.(50.8	45.0	48.9	Σ
Ir			ບ	2	Totals Nun		L	C	R	Totals	· •
	otals	69	50	1 63	74 2						
45 kts	RT	22	18	29	69 6 = 18	%2	31.9		15.9	17.6	76.9
sity ≤ .	ITCM C	23	21	24	68 Subsampl	1%	33.3	58.0	38.1	41.7	core =
Inten	L N	24	11	10	45 aber in 5	0%	34.8	42.0	46.0	40.7	M
1			U	×	otals	,		U U	ĸ	otals	-
					<u></u>						

1000

48 h **TABLE A-14** Same as A-13, excent

لتخال والمتحديد

Ē

Í.

3 43.5 16.1 R 50.0 33.3 16.7 R 33.9 43.5 22.6 7 40.1 13.2 Totals 61.0 33.0 6.0 70.1 47.2 43.2 9.6 Score = 66.5 M Score = 45.0 M Score = 62.4	L L 31 31 31 12 12 33.7 \$\$	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	≤ 45 kts M R R 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 22 %2 %2	Fotals 66 85 2		ntensit 1 L 1 L 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Y 50 to VTCM C C 70 70 81 81 24.2 24.2 24.2	75 kts R 1 13 13 13 13 13 27 27 27 3.0 3.0	2 111 25 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66		Intens I L L L L 26 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	sity ≥ 8 VTCM C C 19 19 29 29 29 29 29 29 33.9 33.9 33.9 51.7	0 kts R R 3 3 3 2 1 2 2 8 2 9 4 2 9 4 2 	78 62 60 60 56 ⁶
7 40.1 13.2 Totals 61.0 33.0 6.0 Totals 47.2 43.2 Score = 66.5 M Score = 45.0 M Score = 45.0 M Score = 45.0	<u> </u>	46.3	16.1		ບ ຜ	58.1 50.0	41.9	16.7		ы С ж	33.9	43.5		22.6
Score = 66.5 M Score = 45.0 M Score = 62.4		40.1	13.2		Totals	61.0	33.0	6.0		Totals	47.2	43.2	6	
	1	Score	= 66.5			Σ	Score =	45.0)		M	core =	62.4	1

2

TABLE A-15 Same as A-13, except for 72 h

in plaints

and the second second

$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		In In	.⊒, I	nsity ≤ NTCM C	45 kts	Totals		I L	NTCM	R	Totals		Inten L	sity ≥ { NTCM C	80 kts	Fotals
$\begin{bmatrix} 61 & C & 13 & 24 & 11 & 48 & C & 27 & 29 & 8 & 64 \\ 64 & R & 7 & 20 & 29 & 56 & R & 28 & 21 & 20 & 69 \\ 89 & Totals & 70 & 67 & 45 & 103 & Totals & 79 & 69 & 30 & 73 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 67 & 45 & 103 & Totals & 79 & 69 & 30 & 73 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 80 & 80 & 80 & 80 & 73 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 50 & 50 & 73 & 100 & 51 & 82 \\ \hline L & 64.1 & 29.5 & 6.4 & C & 45.3 & 54.7 & \\ \hline L & 64.1 & 29.5 & 6.4 & C & 45.3 & 54.7 & \\ \hline L & 64.1 & 29.5 & 6.4 & C & 45.3 & 54.7 & \\ \hline C & 50.0 & 50.0 & & C & 45.3 & 54.7 & \\ \hline R & 51.8 & 35.7 & 12.5 & R & 29.0 & 30.4 & 40.6 \\ \hline Totals & 56.6 & 36.8 & 6.6 & R & 29.0 & 30.4 & 40.6 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 & M & Score & = 75.9 \end{bmatrix}$	L 29 16 12	29 16 12	16 12	12		57	Γ	50	23	S	78	Γ	24	19	2	45
$\begin{bmatrix} 64 & R & 7 & 20 & 29 & 56 & R & 28 & 21 & 20 & 69 \\ \hline R & Totals & 70 & 67 & 45 & 103 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 67 & 45 & 103 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 67 & 45 & 103 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 67 & 45 & 103 \\ \hline Totals & 56.6 & 36.8 & 6.6 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} R & 29 & 21 & 20 & 69 & 30 & 73 \\ \hline Totals & 70 & 67 & 79 & 69 & 30 & 73 \\ \hline Totals & 56.6 & 36.8 & 6.6 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} R & 29 & 30.4 & 40.6 \\ -10 & 42.1 & 16.9 \\ \hline M & Score & = 50.0 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 16 & -11 & 20 & 20.4 & 40.6 \\ -10 & 42.1 & 16.9 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 16 & -11 & -12 & -12 & -12 \\ -10 & 41.0 & 42.1 & 16.9 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 16 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 16 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 16 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 & -12 \\ \hline \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 16 & -12 $	C 16 31 14	16 31 14	31 14	14		61	U U	. 13	24	11	48	C	27	29	80	64
89Totals706745103Totals7969307322Number in Subsample = 182Number in Subsample = 182Number in Subsample = 178 $\%0$ $\%1$ $\%2$ $\%0$ $\%1$ $\%2$ $\%0$ $\%1$ $\%2$ $\%0$ $\%1$ $\%2$ C 50.0 50.0 \cdots C 45.3 54.7 C 50.0 50.0 \cdots C 45.3 54.7 C 51.8 35.7 12.5 R 29.0 30.4 40.6 R 56.6 36.8 6.6 $Totals$ $A1.0$ 42.1 16.9 M Score = 50.0 M Score = 75.9 M Score = 75.9	R 8 27 29	8 27 29	27 29	29		64	R	7	20	29	56	R	28	21	20	69
2 Number in Subsample = 182	otals 53 74 55	53 74 55	74 55	55		89	Totals .	10/	67	45	103	Totals	62	69	30	73
L 64.1 29.5 6.4 L 53.3 42.2 4.4 C 50.0 50.0 \cdots C 45.3 54.7 \cdots R 51.8 35.7 12.5 R 29.0 30.4 40.6 Totals 56.6 36.8 6.6 $Totals$ 41.0 42.1 16.9 M Score = 50.0 M $Score = 75.9$ M $Score = 75.9$	Number in Subsample = 18 %0 %1 %2	aber in Subsample = 18 %0 %1 %2	subsample = 18 %1 %2	e = 18 %2	N		N	mber in \$	Subsampl %1	e = 18 %2	1 5	Nu	mber in %0	Subsamp %1	le = 1 %2	œ
C50.050.0 $$ C 45.3 54.7 $$ R51.8 35.7 12.5 R 29.0 30.4 40.6 Totals56.6 36.8 6.6 $Totals$ 41.0 42.1 16.9 MScore = 50.0 MScore = 75.9	L 50.9 28.1 21.1	50.9 28.1 21.1	28.1 21.1	21.1			L	64.1	29.5	6.4		Г	53.3	42.2	4.4	
R 51.8 35.7 12.5 R 29.0 30.4 40.6 Totals 56.6 36.8 6.6 Totals 41.0 42.1 16.9 M Score = 50.0 M Score = 75.9	C 50.8 49.2	50.8 49.2	49.2				Ū.	50.0	50.0			C	45.3	54.7		
Totals 56.6 36.8 6.6 Totals 41.0 42.1 16.9 M Score 50.0 M Score 75.9	R 45.3 42.2 12.5	45.3 42.2 12.5	42.2 12.5	12.5		••••••••••••••••	R	51.8	35.7	12.5		R	29.0	30.4	40.6	
M Score = 50.0 M Score = 75.9	itals 48.9 40.1 11.0	48.9 40.1 11.0	40.1 11.0	11.0			Totals	56.6	36.8	6.6		Totals	41.0	42.1	16.9	
	M Score = 62.1	M Score = 62.1	core = 62.1	62.1				M	core =	50.0	,	_	M Sc	ore =	75.9	

1.00000 H 1.55000 - 500

(T

TABLE A-16 Same as A-13, except for along-track 24 h

És

CARACACA SALES

		ls										a da tanàna amin'ny faritr'o amin'ny faritr'o amin'ny faritr'o amin'ny faritr'o amin'ny faritr'o amin'ny faritr		
		Tota	56	62	43	۳ ۲	178	5	S		Q	1	e.	-
s0 kts		щ	7	10	12	29	ple =	%	12.		25.	10.	= 66	IPER)
ity ≥ 8	ITCM	с	15	32	20	67	Subsam	%1	26.8	59.5	46.5	46.1	core =	to CL
Intens		S	34	37	11	82	nber in	%0	60.7	40.5	27.9	43.8	W	rclative
· · ·		l	S	C	Ľ,	Ţotals	Nui		S	C	н	Totals	-	st Track
		<u></u>			Market (1999) (1997) (1997)									(Bé
SI		Tota	59	62	61	ູຂ	182	2	5.1	:	.1	-		5 km
75 kl		щ	3	7	24	3	॥ २	%		:	31	12	62.	F > 15
50 to `	CM	ບ	14	24		2 2	lgampi	%1	23.7	61.3	29.5	38.4	ore =	km;
sity :	E					H	in St	%0	1.2	8.7	9.3	5.61	A Sc	to 15
nten		S	42	31	19	32	lumbei		s S	<u>.</u>	<u>н</u>	sl 4	_ ~	-125
Ι			S	С	ц	Totals	Z					Tota		m; C
		otals	60	46	<u></u> 76	72	7							-125 k
5 kts		F T	4	8	15	27	c = 18	%2	6.7		50.0	23.1	83.5	
ity ≤ 4	TCM	c	12	13	23	48	ubsampl	%1 [`]	20.0	71.7	30.3	40.7	ore =	ut Points
Intensi	Ż	s	44	25	38	107	ıber in S	% 0	73.3	28.3	19.7	39.6	M Sc(บี
		ł	S	U	<u>.</u> ц	Totals	Nun		S	U	<u>ل</u> تر	Totals	1	
2			Be	est Tr	ack			*********	Be	st Tr	ack			

.

TABLE A-17 Same as A-16, except for 48 h

21.12.2.2.2.2

Research Annalse Industrial address? Research

	als	~ .	~					n - en anter en terrer	njeda na stra do servete				
	Toti	58	78	42	81 81	178	٦					3	
30 kts	н	6	19	19	4	ple =	%2	10.3	:	23.8	0.6	63.5	IDED \
iity ≥ 8	NTCM C	21	31	13	3	Subsam	%1	36.2	60.3	31.0	45.5	ore =	5
Intens	່ິ	31	28	10	69	umber in	0%	53.4	39.7	45.2	45.5	M Sc	unitalar .
		S	ບ	<u>іц</u>	Totals	ź		S	C	ĽL ,	Totals	_	T-ach
	otals	64	52	99	107	8	ſ	5, 1 - 1, 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -					é
75 kts	FT		10	31	42	= 18	<i>%</i> 2	1.6		24.2	9.3	50.5	1 20 .
50 to	C C	11	24	19	54	olqmesdu	%1	17.2	53.8	28.8	31.9	core =	1
ensity	ž s	52	18	16	86	oer in Sı	%0	81.3	46.2	47.0	58.8	MS	20 04
Int		s	ບ.	<u>ц</u>	lais	Numt	L	S	U U	ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	otals	J	300
					Tol		Maren - Franke	an a			F	Magazian	د :
	[otals	56	50	76	80	7							-1 STC
45 kts	F	4	12	29	45	lc = 18	%2	7.1		30.3	14.8	70.8	
ısity ≤	NTCM C	19	18	24	61	Subsamp	%1	33.9	64.0	31.6	41.2	core =	Doints.
Inter	ິິ	33	20	23	76	mber in	%0	58.9	36.0	38.2	44.0	M Sc	č
		S	U	ĹĽ,	Totals	Nu		S	U	щ	Totals		
and the		Bes	t Tra	ck	~~~~~~			Be	est Ti	ack			

TABLE A-18 Same as A-16, except for 72 h

المحدد ورور

. Statest

	60		nin nakistatan.	navaanse oorden.	an an tha an	ng in Grandstand an an	antanan sayah	yan synederfeldere	and the second second second	Robert and Social	100000
	Fotal	58	65	55	. 16	<u>e</u> [9		2	4	I
) kts	Н	5	14	27	46	e = 17 %2	8.		18.3	8.	57.3
:y ≥ 8(TCM C	25	36	18	62	ıbsample %1	43.1	44.6	32.7	40.5	core =
ntensil	N S	28	15	10	53	er in Su %0	48.3	55.4	49.1	51.1	M Sc
ī		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	U	 Ľ	otals	Aund	S	U	Ľ.	Totals	1
			000000-00-00000			Min of Madata and an	en an	a de cocurre do		0.0000.0000000000000000000000000000000	05555550
	otals	61	26	65	103	1					1
kts	L t	-	6	4	4	• 182 %2	.1.6		27.7	10.4	53.8
io 75	N H			~	2	ple = 1	.2	5.4	0.0	0	H
501	VTCI C	16	25	13	54	ubsam) %	26	5:	20	33	Score
ensity	້ິ	44	12	18	74	er in S %0	72.1	44.6	52.3	56.6	Σ
- 21						qui	S	Ú	щ	als	
II		S .	C	Ľ.	Fotals	ź				Tol	
II I		Ś	C	۲ <u>ـ</u>	Totals	ź				Tol	
Ir	Totals	64 · S	56 C	62 F	92 Totals	ź				To	1
5 kts <mark>g</mark> lr	F Totals	7 64 S	12 56 C	27 62 F	46 92 Totals	= 182 Ni	10.9		29.0	13.8 To	63.3
ty ≤ 45 kts <mark>`</mark> ¶ Ir	ITCM C F Totals	18 7 64 · S	26 12 56 C	17 27 62 F	61 46 92 Totals	bsample = 182 Nv %1 %2	28.1 10.9	53.6	27.4 29.0	35.7 13.8 To	ore = 63.3
Intensity ≤ 45 kts _	NTCM S C F Totals	39 18 7 64 S	18 26 12 56 C	18 17 27 62 F	75 61 46 92 Totals	er in Subsample = 182 No 80 %1 %2	60.9 28.1 10.9	46.4 53.6	43.5 27.4 29.0	50.5 35.7 13.8 To	M Score = 63.3
Intensity ≤ 45 kts	NTCM S C F Totals	S 39 18 7 64 S	C 18 26 12 56 C	F 18 17 27 62 F	Totals 75 61 46 92 Totals	Number in Subsample = 182 No %0 %1 %2	S 60.9 28.1 10.9	C 46.4 53.6	F 43.5 27.4 29.0	Totals 50.5 35.7 13.8 Tot	M Score = 63.3
Intensity ≤ 45 kts $$ Ir	NTCM S C F Totals	S 39 18 7 64 S	C 18 26 12 56 C	F 18 17 27 62 F	Totals 75 61 46 92 Totals	Number in Subsample = 182 No %0 %1 %2	S 60.9 28.1 10.9	C 46.4 53.6	F 43.5 27.4 29.0	Totals 50.5 35.7 13.8 Tot	M Score = 63.3

TABLE A-19 Same as A-1, except for stratified by past 12-h intensity change (Δ Intensity).

ŝ,

	de de characterista das su asso	· · · · · ·							••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	an a		
	Totals	8	37	32	43	•	3					
5 kt	2	4	14	17	35	= 95 %2	13.		ر	2	= 61.7	ER)
ty ≥ 1	C M	5	15	14	14	osample %1	50.0	59.5	43.8	51.5	ore =	CLIPI
tensil	E ,					in Sut %0	36.7	40.5	53.1	43.4	M Sc	live to
Δ In	Ι	Ξ			\$ 20	Imber]	L	<u></u>	als		relat
)		Г	C	R	Total	Ž				Tot		t Track
	otals	47	55	12	71							(Bes
10 kt	т х		0	6		- 169 %2	25.5		22.4	16.0	74.0	50 km
5 to	Ϋ́	<u> </u>		2		nple = %1	29.8	61.8	34.3	12.0	Dre =	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
nsity	C NTC	14	21	23	58	Subsar 60	<u> </u>	.2	.3	0	1 Scc	, km.
Inte	L	21	14	15	50	ber in 9	44	38	R 43	ls 42	2	15 IN 5(
Ā		لــــــا بـا	C	~	otals	Num	1	Ŭ	н	Tota		C = J
	a Is				1					*****		'S km'
	Tot		64	57	88	90 2	.3		8.0		∞	
0 kt	~	14	15	25	54	= %	50		15	12	65.	2: J
sity ≤	C C	19	27	23	69	sample % 1	27.5	57.8	40.4	41.6	ore =	It Point
Inten	Z L	2	12	6	1 2	r in Sut %0	52.2	42.2	43.9	46.3	M Sc	Ú
			0	<u>ي</u>	otals (Numbe			2	Totals	1	
		D	• T		Ĥ							
		bes	i ira	ÇK			E	sest T	rack			

92

TABLE A-20 Same as A-19, except for 48 h

$ \Delta \text{ Intensity ≤ 0 kt } L = C = R = T_{0 \text{ tails}} $ $ L = C = R = T_{0 \text{ tails}} $ $ L = C = R = T_{0 \text{ tails}} $ $ L = C = R = T_{0 \text{ tails}} $ $ L = C = R = T_{0 \text{ tails}} $ $ L = \frac{49}{10} = 18 = 9 $ $ T_{0 \text{ tails}} $ $ 79 = 71 = 40 = 96 $ $ Number \text{ in Subsample } = 190 $ $ Number \text{ in Subsample } = 190 $ $ Number $ $ R = 190 $ $ Number $ $ Number $ $ R = 190 $ $ Number $ $ R = 100 $ $ R $	censity 5 to 10 kt Δ Intensity \geq 15 kt	NTCM NTCM	C R Totals L C R Totals	32 14 5 51 L 20 10 2 32	17 28 12 57 C 7 21 4 32	12 22 27 61 R 5 16 14 35	51 61 44 87 Totals 32 47 20 55	in Subsample = 169 Number in Subsample = 99	%0 %1 %2 %0 %1 %2	62.7 27.5 9.8 L 62.5 31:3 6.3	49.1 50.9 C 65.6 34.4	44.3 36.1 19.7 R 40.0 45.7 14.3	51.5 38.5 10.0 Totals 55.6 37.4 7.1	$M C_{COTP} = 58.5$ M Score = 51.6
Δ Intensity ≤ 0 kt NTCM L L L C R TO R L A D L A D C C C C C C C C C C C C C	0000		tals	76	1 %	56	96							
$\Delta \text{ Intensity} \leq ($ $L \Delta \text{ Intensity} \leq ($ $L C NTCM$ $L 49 18$ $R 10 26$ $Totals 79 71$ $Number \text{ in Subsample} =$ $\mathcal{R} 64.5 23.7$ $C 46.6 53.4$ $R 35.7 46.4$) kt		R Toi	6	=	20]	190	62	11.8		17.9	10.0]*
Δ Inten: L 49 L 49 L 49 R 10 R 10 R 10 R 10 R 20 % 0 % R 35.7 R 35.7 M Score	sity ≤ C	CM	ິ	18	27	26	11	ample =	1 3	23.7	53.4	46.4	39.5	
	Intens	IN	L (49	20	10	62	in Subsi	% 09	64.5	46.6	35.7	50.5	N Sco
	Þ		ļ	L	U	~~	Totals	Number	6	 	<u>ບ</u>	8	Totals	1 -

4

TABLE A-21 Same as A-19, except for 72 H

And the

		en de la companya			entre nation				enne enne en	an a	****
	Totals	31	33	35	55						
15 kt	R	1	5	17	23	e = 99 %2	3.2		22.9	9.1	53.5
ısity ≥	VTCM C	Ξ	19	10	40.	ubsampl %1	35.5	42.4	28.6	35.3	ore =
∆ Inter	L L	19	6	8	36	ber in S %0	61.3	57.6	48.6	55.6	M Sc
]	U	×	Totals	Nun	L	C	R	Totals	• •
	tals	53	1 2	18	0						
10 [°] kt	R To	S	6	32 7	4 9	= 169 %2	9.4		21.4	11.8	58.5
y 5 to	CM	4	4		10	ample %1	26.4	47.8	32.9	34.9	16 = 1
tensit						in Subs %0	4.2	2.2	5.7	3.3	A Sco
∆ In		3		1	ં	mber		<u>2</u>	R 4	s 5	2
		. <u> </u>	C	R	otals	'n	Π	Ŭ		[otal	1
					L L						
	otals	73	61	56	84 T						
0 kt	R Totals	12 73	14 61	18 56	44 84 T	= 190 %2	16.4		25.0	13.7	69.5
nsity ≤ 0 kt 🛛	VTCM C R Totals	20 12 73	25 14 61	24 18 56	69 44 84 T	bsample = 190 %1 %2	27.4 16.4	59.0	42.9 25.0	42.1 13.7	ore = 69.5
∆ Intensity ≤ 0 kt	NTCM L C R Totals	41 20 12 73	22 25 14 61	14 24 18 56	77 69 44 84 T	er in Subsample = 190 %0 %1 %2	56.2 27.4 16.4	41.0 59.0	32.1 42.9 25.0	44.2 42.1 13.7	M Score = 69.5
∆ Intensity ≤ 0 kt	NTCM L C R Totals	L 41 20 12 73	C 22 25 14 61	R 14 24 18 56	Totals 77 69 44 84 T	Number in Subsample = 190 %0 %1 %2	L 56.2 27.4 16.4	C 41.0 59.0	R 32.1 42.9 25.0	Totals 44.2 42.1 13.7	M Score = 69.5

TABLE A-22 Same as A-19, except for along-track 24 h

. . .

		ils					~~~~~	******				Contraction of the second	*******
		Tota	27	45	27	42	•	Г	T				
15 kt		щ	3	∞	10	21	= = 0	%2	11.1		29.6	11.1	68.7 ER)
sity ≥	NTCM	υ	4	12	9	25	ubsampl	%1	14.8	73.3	33.3	46.5	core = ccLIP
A Inten	-	S	20	25	80	53	ber in S	%0	74.1	26.7	37.0	42.4	M So elative t
7		L	Ś	U	ц	Totals	Num	-	S	C	ц	Totals	Track r
7						····							(Best
kt		[ota]	60	57	52	83	6	ſ					
o 10		н	S	Ś	14	24	= 16	%2	8		34.6	13.6	64.5 15 kn
ity 5 t	ſĊM	ບ	12	26	20	58	sample	%1	20.0	54.4	38.5	37.3	ore = "", F,
Intens	ž	S	13	9	∞	5	r in Sul	%0	71.7	45.6	26.9	49.1	M Sc 15 ki
Ø			4			<u></u>	umbei		s S	<u>ບ</u>	<u>تر</u>	als	-125
			S		ш,	Tota	z					Tot	" C
		otals	56	67	67	75							125 km;
¢0 kt		F T	S	10	16	<u>3</u>	= 190	%2	8.9		49.3	20.0	80.5 S < -
nsity ≤	ITCM	С	17	25	18	3	bsample	%1	30.4	62.7	26.9	40.5	Ore = Points:
Δ Inte		S	34	32	33	8	er in Su	0%	50.7	37.3	23.9	39.5	M S _C
			S	<u> </u>	ĹĹ,	Totals	Numb		 v	U U	<u>د الم</u>	Totals	L
2000			Be	st Tra	ack				B	est 7	Track		

5

...





TABLE A-23 Same as A-22, except for 48 h



SSSSI IIVAN SASAIIIVAN INA MARKANA

96

TABLE A-24 Same as A-22, except for 72 h

Contract of the

م*ا بند ما م*ع

	otals	36	28	35	56						
15 kt	F	-	8	18	27	- 99 962	2.8		20.0	8.1	51.5
sity ≥	C C	13	16	10	39	bsample %1	36.1	42.9	28.6	35.3	ore =
∆ Inten	z v	22	4	7	33	ver in Sv %0	61.1	57.1	51.4	56.6	M Sc
7		<u> </u>	U	 لار	Totals	Numb	<u> </u>	U U	ĬĽ	Totals	
	otals	61	59	64	92						
) 10 ki	н Н	ν.	20	28	53	= 169 cz.7	8.2	:	16.3	7.7	53.3
ity 5 to	C M	19	27	13	59	bsample oz. 1	31.1	54.2	26.5	37.9	ore =
Intens	N N	37	12	∞	57	er in Sul ozo	60.7	45.8	57.1	54.4	M Sc
Δ		<i>"</i>	U U	Ľ	Totals	Numb	N.	 ບ	<u>ц</u>	Totals	•
-200-200	s 2004-2005 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1 2997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	a sana ana ang									- 1997
Ì	otals	60	66	2	92		anno estas estas		2000 (n. 1997) 2000 (n. 1997)		
≤0 kt	F Totals	5 60	10 66	24 64	39 92	= 190 «Z	70		37.5	15.3	6.99
nsity ≤ 0 kt	VTCM C F Totals	22 5 60	35 10 66	16 24 64	73 39 92	bsample = 190 06.1 06.0	36.7	47.0	25.0 37.5	36.3 15.3	ore = 66.9 [.]
Δ Intensity $\leq 0 \text{ kt}$	NTCM S C F Totals	33 22 5 60	21 35 10 66	24 16 24 64	78 73 39 92	ocr in Subsample = 190 02.0 02.1 02.3	55.0 36.7	53.0 47.0	37.5 25.0 37.5	48.4 36.3 15.3	M Score = 66.9
Δ Intensity ≤ 0 kt	NTCM S C F Totals	S 33 22 5 60	C 21 35 10 66	F 24 16 24 64	Totals 78 73 39 92	Number in Subsample = 190 02.0 02.1 02.3	S 55.0 36.7	C 53.0 47.0	F 37.5 25.0 37.5	Totals 48.4 36.3 15.3	M Score = 66.9

97

and a second second

TABLE A-25 Same as A-1, except for cross-track 24 h stratified by size (radius of 30-kt winds in n.mi).

Size ≥ 210 n.mi	NTCM L C R Tolais	L 21 20 5 46	C 25 21 10 56	R 13 26 34 73	Totals 59 67 49 76	Number in Subsample = 175 %0 %1 %2	L 45.7 43.5 10.9	C 37.5 62.5	R 46.6 35.6 17.8	Totals 43.4 46.3 10.3	M Score = 66.9 test Track relative to CLIPER)
Size 110 to 205 n.mi	NTCM L C R Totals	L 21 20 14 55	C 15 29 24 68	R 5 29 24 58	Totals 41 78 62 74	Number in Subsample = 181 %0 %1 %2	L 38.2 36.4 25.5	C 42.6 57.4	R 41.4 50.0 8.6	Totals 40.9 48.6 10.5	M Score = 69.6
	Totals	76	55	55	% 8	186 2	1		0	<u>د</u>	
n.mi	- ×	16	19	25	8	se 1	21.		20.	14.	= 68.3 ints:
≤ 105	NTCN C	26	27	19	2	Subsamı % 1	34.2	50.9	34.5	39.3	Core = Cut Po
Size	L	34	6	=	54	ber in 3 %0	44.7	49.1	45.5	46.2	N N
			Ū	~~~	Totals	U N N	L	C	x	Totals	-
		Be	st Tra	ıck			B	est Ti	rack		

TABLE A-26 Same as A-25, except for 48 h

NEW CONTRACTOR

Size ≤ 105 n.n NTCM	Size ≤ 105 n.rr NTCM	≤ 105 n.n NTCM	u.n	·=		S	lize 11	0 to 2 VTCM	05 n.n	ai		Size >	210 n UTCM	.mi	
L C R Totals	L C R Totals	C R Totals	R Totals	Totals		1.		ပ	¥	Totals	L	-	U U	~	otals
L 44 20 6 70	44 20 6 70	20 6 70	6 70	70			34	16	10	60		35	50	3	58
C 12 33 15 60	12 33 15 60	33 15 60	15 60	60		່ <u>ບ</u>	14	41	11	66	U	25	20	5	8
R 9 22 25 56	9 22 25 56	22 25 56	25 56	56		~	8	23	24	55	×	16	27	24	67
Totals 65 75 46 102 To	65 75 46 102 To	75 46 102 To	46 102 To	102 To	1°	tals -	56	8	45	66	Totals	76	67	32	79
Number in Subsample = 186	mber in Subsample = 186	Subsample = 186	c = 186	<u> </u>		Nun	ber in S	ubsamp	le =]	81	Nur	nber in	Subsamp	ie = 1	15
%0 %1 %2	%0 %1 %2	%1 %2	%2				8	1%	%	~		0%	81	%2	ן
L 62.9 28.6 8.6	62.9 28.6 8.6	28.6 8.6	8.6			Ч	56.7	26.7	7 16.	7		60.3	34.5	5.2	
C 55.0 45.0	55.0 45.0	45.0				U U	62.1	37.	6		ບ 	40.0	60.0		
R 44.6 39.3 16.1	44.6 39.3 16.1	39.3 16.1	16.1			X	43.6	41.8	3 14.	5	~~~~	35.8	40.3	23.9	
Totals 54.8 37.1 8.1	s 54.8 37.1 8.1	37.1 8.1	8.1			Total	54.7	35.4	6	6.	Totals	45.1	44.0	10.9	
M Score = 53.3	M Score = 53.3	Score = 53.3	53.3	-175 k m:		 - -	N N N N N N	Score	= 55. 8 > 13		Best Tra	k relat	Score =	= 65.8 LIPER)	

AN RADIOS NOVEMBER NOVEMBER 1

TABLE A-27 Same as A-25, except for 72 h

رد. چود در ۱۹

	-						····-					
	Total	4	69	65	62	75	ſ	4		4	~	
Ē	R	-1	7	22	30		<u>%2</u>	5		35.	13.	68.6
210 n	U CM	6	9	0	6	sample	%1	39.0	52.2	30.8	41.2) =
se ≥`	IN 0		<u></u>	2		in Sub	0	8.5	7.8	3.8	5.1	l Sco
Siz	Г	24	29	23	76	mber	6	S	4	3	4,	X
		L	C	R	Totals	z		Ι	Ŭ	H	Tota	I
	, m					1920 - 1920 -					and the second	
. <u>.</u>	Total	67	52	62	84	-		4		0	5	~
5 n.n	R ,	6	17	26	22	- 18	%2	13.		21.	12.	65.
o 20'	M					nple	1%	5.8	3.8	7.1	1.4	
10 te	C C	24	24	23	71	ubsar		7 3	2 5	9	4 4	Sco
ize 1	L _	34	=	13	58	ы Б	%	50.	46.	41.	46.	Σ
S		L,		~		Aumb		L	C	R	tals	
		1			Tota						To	
	otals	12	52	62	102							
ı.mi	RT	6	6	30	48	= 186	% 2	12.5		11.3	8.6	53.8
51	5				-	aple	_	0.	1.		6	11
			-			-	-0	S	00		o.	12.
e ≤ 1(NTCN C	18	27	25	20	ubsai	64	2	4	4	Ř	, CO
Size ≤ 1(L C	45 18	16 27	7 25	68 70	oer in Subsa	80%	62.5 2	51.9 4	48.4 4(54.8 3	M Scol
Size ≤ 1(L C	L 45 18	C 16 27	R 7 25	Totals 68 70	Number in Subsa	80%	L 62.5 2	C 51.9 4	R 48.4 4(Totals 54.8 3	M Scol
Size ≤ 1(L C	r L 45 18	C 16 27	. R 7 25	Totals 68 70	Number in Subsa	8 0%	, L 62.5 2	C 51.9 4	R 48.4 40	Totals 54.8 3	M Scol

NAMES AND DESCRIPTION

TABLE A-28 Same as A-25, except for along-track 24 h

1

6.5

2 C						_						
	Total	ŝ	71	49	83	75	1					1
Ξ	Ľ.	6	10	13	29	-	%7 %	10.9	5 3 5 4	26.5	10.9	63.5
10 n.n CM	2	14	35	23	2	bsample	%1	25.5	50.7	46.9	41.7	ore =
se ≥ 2 N	S	S	6	3	4	er in Su	%0	63.6	49.3	26.5	47.4	M Sci
3	Į				ais [Numbe	l	S	ບ ບ	<u>ш</u>	sia sia	l
		•,			Tot						Tot	
	otals	59	8	21	ő		1					
n.m	Ĩ	e.	9	17		- 181	%2	5.4		42.1	14.9	71.8
CM CM		+	~	<u>~</u>	<u> </u>	ample	%1	5.0	67.6	28.1	\$2.0	se =
Š Ľ	Ĭ	1,	<u>к</u>	–	22	a Subi	03	.6	4	80	1.	Sco
IZC]	S	39		24	103	nber i	6	69	32	29	° 43	Σ
2		S	U	ĨĽ,	Totals	Nur N		S	0	Щ.	Total	
	otals	21	8	4	6/							
Ē	Ľ	s	6	21	ي ۲	= 186	% 2	7.8		41.9	19.4	6.9
TCM	υ	13	12	22	<u>1</u>	sample	% I	20.3	75.0	29.7	38.1	re =)
Dize S	S	4 6	27	31	₹ Į	ir in Sul	% 0	71.9	25.0	28.4	42.5	M Sco
		S	U U	<u>ل</u> تر.	Totals	A ddaN		S	U U		Total	1

101

 \cdot

1.1.1

TABLE A-29 Same as A-28, except for 48 h

	Total	51	72	52	. 87	75	[00		4	0	1
ы.	Ľ,	6	20	28	54		% 2	11.		15.	œ	58.3 ER)
0 n.r	M				-	ample	18	3.5	3.9	0.8	2.3	cup Cup
≥ 21	C C	21	5	ī	S.	Subs		7 2	1 6	8	7 4	Scor
Size	S	33	26	∞	67	ber in	8	64.	36.	53.	49.	Telativ
		S	U	<u> </u>		Num	-	S	U	Ľ	otals	rack
22.41.					To						-1	lest
	otals	63	62	56	92							ــــ و
n.mi	Ē			0		181	%2	1.6		28.6	9.4	58.6 25 km
2051				6	3	ple =	-	.2	1.2	۲.	∞	۱۱ ۸ د.
) to (с ICV I	19	29	20	68	lmesq	%	30	53	35	39	Scon
e 11(2 5	3		9		in Sı	9%	68.3	46.8	35.7	50.8	M 2
Siz		4	· · ·	Ĩ	8	umber	Ĺ	S	Ū	<u>Ľ.</u>	Ē	
		S	C C	ĹŢ,	otal	Z					To	U
	sia				-						ومعقر	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
	Totals	64	46	76	89 T	9	i i i i	3				275 km:
ı.mi	F Totals	4 64	10 46	31 76	45 89 T	- 186	% 2	6.3		32.9	15.6	67.8 S < -275 km:
05 n.mi	CM F Totals	0 4 64	8 10 46	0 31 76	8 45 89 T	mple = 186	1 %2	1.3 6.3	0.9	6.3 32.9	6.6 15.6	c = 67.8
e ≤ 105 n.mi	NTCM C F Totals	20 4 64	18 10 46	20 31 76	58 45 89 T	Subsample = 186	%1 %2	i 31.3 6.3	60.9	32.9	1 36.6 15.6	Score = 67.8 t Points S < -275 km:
Size ≤ 105 n.mi	NTCM S C F Totals	40 20 4 64	18 18 10 46	25 20 31 76	83 58 45 89 T	cer in Subsample = 186	%0 %1 %2	62.5 31.3 6.3	39.1 60.9	40.8 26.3 32.9	47.8 36.6 15.6	M Score = 67.8 Cut Points: S < -275 km:
Size ≤ 105 n.mi	NTCM S C F Totals	S 40 20 4 64	C 18 18 10 46	F 25 20 31 76	tals 83 58 45 89 T	Number in Subsample = 186	%0 %1 %2	S 62.5 31.3 6.3	C 39.1 60.9	F 40.8 26.3 32.9	otal, 47.8 36.6 15.6	M Score = 67.8 Cut Pointe: $S < -375$ km:
Size ≤ 105 n.mi	NTCM S C F Totals	S 40 20 4 64	C 18 18 10 46	F 25 20 31 76	Totals 83 58 45 89 T	Number in Subsample = 186	%0 %1 %2	S 62.5 31.3 6.3	C 39.1 60.9	F 40.8 26.3 32.9	Totel, 47.8 36.6 15.6	M Score = 67.8 Cut Points: S < -775 km:

NACKARA SA

3

TABLE A-30 Same as A-28, except for 72 h.

and all the states

٦												
	Total	43	5	68	6	175.		<u>e</u> .			=	4
n.mi	Ц	4	17	40	61	ple =	\$2			17	6	= 55.
210 r	TCM C	14	29	16	59	Subsam	1%	32.6	54.7	23.5	37.2	core =
Size ≥	z v	25	18	12	55	mber in	6%	58.1	45.3	58.8	53.7	W
		S	U	<u>بت</u>	Totals	Nu		S	C	<u>ت.</u>	Totals	1
	ials	73	2	1 2	92	5. <u>5.</u> 5.						
n.mi	F To	7	13	61	34	- 181	% 2	2.7		29.6	9.9	59.1
to 205	W.	83	9	61	1 4	sample	%i	38.4	44.4	35.2	39.3	core =
e 110	NT S	3				in Sub	60%	58.9	55.6	35.2	50.8	N S
Siz		4	<u> </u>			Jumber		S	 ບ	ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	tals.	
				<u> </u>	Tot	~.					°Ľ.	
	Fotals	67	59	00	100							
n.mi	Ц	7	15	29	21	- 186	% 2	10.4		30.0	13.4	59.6
5	CM	17	28	13	58	bsample	%1	25.4	52.5	21.7	32.8	ore =
≤ 10,	Ĕ	•=-			}	n Su	0	?	v.	3	<u>∞</u>	Ň
Size ≤ 10:	S C	43	16	18	7	CL İ	8	2	4	4 8	53	Σ
Size ≤ 10 ⁴	NTN S C	S 43	C 16	F 18	Fotals 77	Number i	8	S 64	C 47	F 48	Totals 53.	Σ

103

AND CONTRACTORS OF THE SECTION OF THE
LIST OF REFERENCES

COMNAVOCEANCOM, 1984: Letter, Ser. 3/387, 20 July 1984 to CINCPACFLT re. tropical cyclone track forecast accuracy.

Elsberry, R. L., 1979: Applications of tropical cyclone models. <u>Bulletin of the</u> <u>American Meteorological Society. 60</u>, 750-762.

Elsberry, R. L., 1983: Recent developments in tropical cyclone track forecasting. Proceedings of the CCNA-AIT Joint Seminar on Monsoon and Tropical Meteorology. Sponsored by the Coordination Council for North American Affairs - The American Institute in Taiwan, pp. 89-98.

Elsberry, R. L., 1984: A proposal for an improved tropical cyclone warning system. Unpublished manuscript, Department of Meteorology, Naval Postgraduate School, Monterey, CA, April, 41 pp.

Elsberry, R. L., and J. E. Peak, 1986: An evaluation of tropical cyclone forecast aids based on cross-track and along-track components. <u>Monthly Weather Review. 114</u>, 156-164.

Fiorino, M., 1985: A review of the dynamic tropical cyclone forecast models developed by the U. S. Navy. Appendix F of Elsberry, R. L., and M. Fiorino, NAVENVPREDRSHFAC Technical Report TR 85-03, 152 pp.

Fiorino, M. E., J. Harrison and D. G. Marks, 1982: A comparison of the performance of two operational dynamic tropical cyclone models. <u>Monthly Weather</u> <u>Review</u>, <u>110</u>, 651-656.

BERNERS PREDICTS PRESERVE CONSIGN REPRESERVE SEPARATE

Harrison, E. J., Jr., 1973: Three-dimensional numerical simulations of tropical systems utilizing nested finite grids. <u>Journal of the Atmospheric Sciences</u>, 30, 1528-1543.

Harrison, E. J., Jr., 1981: Initial results from the Navy two-way interactive nested tropical cyclone model. <u>Monthly Weather Review</u>, 109, 173-177.

Harrison, E. J., Jr. and M. E. Fiorino, 1982: A comprehensive test of the Navy nested tropical cyclone model. <u>Monthly Weather Review</u>, <u>110</u>, 645-650.

Neumann, C. J., and J. M. Pelissier, 1981: Models for the prediction of tropical cyclone motions over the North Atlantic: An operational evaluation. <u>Monthly Weather</u> <u>Review</u>, 109, 522-538.

Peak, J. E. and R. L. Elsberry, 1982: A simplified statistical post-processing technique for adjusting tropical cyclone tracks. <u>Papers in Meteorological Research</u>, 5, 1-14.

Peak, J. E. and R. L. Elsberry, 1984: Dynamical-statistical model forecasts of southern hemisphere tropical cyclones. <u>Monthly Weather Review</u>, 112, 717-724.

Peak, J. E. and R. L. Elsberry, 1985: Objective selection of optimum tropical cyclone guidance using a decision-tree methodology. Preprints, the Technical Conference on Hurricanes and Tropical Meteorology, American Meteorological Society, Boston, 97-98.

Preisendorfer, R. W., and C. D. Mobley, 1982: Data intercomparison theory, II. PMEL/NOAA Technical Memorandum, 91 pp.

Sandgathe, S. A., 1985: Operational considerations for the design of the advanced tropical cyclone model. Appendix A of Elsberry, R. L., and M. Fiorino, NAVENVPREDRSHFAC Technical Report TR 85-03, 152 pp.

Thompson, W. J., R. L. Elsberry and R. G. Read, 1980: An analysis of eastern North Pacific tropical cyclone forecast errors. <u>Monthly Weather Review</u>, 109, 1930-1938.

Xu, Y., and C.J. Neumann, 1985: A statistical model for the prediction of western North Pacific tropical cyclone motion (WPCLPR). NOAA Technical Memorandum, NWS-NHC 28, National Hurricane Center, Miami, Fl, 30 pp.

INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

		No. Copies
1.	Defense Technical Information Center Cameron Station, Alexandria, Virginia 22304-6145	2
2.	Library Code 0142 Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943	2
3.	Chairman, Code 63Rd Department of Meteorology Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	1
4.	Professor R.L. Elsberry, Code 63Es Department of Meteorology Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	5
5.	Professor J.CL. Chan Royal Observatory Nathan Road Kowloon, Hong Kong	1
6.	Mr. James E. Peak, Code 63 Pj Department of Meteorology Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	1
7.	Chairman, Code 68Mr Department of Oceanography Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	1
8.	Commanding Officer Naval Oceanography Command Center Box 17 COMNAVMARIANAS FPO San Francisco, CA 96630	1
9.	Director Joint Typhoon Warning Center Box 17 COMNAVMARIANAS FPO San Francisco, CA 96630	I

106

the second se

k

10.	Commanding Officer Naval Environmental Prediction Research Facility Monterey, CA 93943-5000	1
11.	Brian J. Williams, LT, USN 82 Golden Showers Lane FPO San Francisco, CA 96630	2
12.	Director Naval Oceanography Division Naval Observatory 34th and Massachusetts Avenue Washington, DC 20390	1
13.	Commanding Officer Fleet Numerical Oceanography Center Monterey, CA 93943-5000	1
14.	Chairman, Oceanography Department U.S. Naval Academy Annapolis, MD 21402	1
15.	Commanding Officer Naval Western Oceanography Center Box 113 Pearl Harbor, HI 96818	1
.16.	Dr. Ted Tsui Naval Environmental Prediction Research Facility Monterey, CA 93943-5000	1
17.	Professor William M. Gray Department of Atmospheric Sciences Colorado State University Fort Collins, CO 80523	1
18.	Commander Naval Oceanography Command NSTL Station Bay St. Louis, MS 3852	1
19.	Chief of Naval Research 800 N. Quincy Street Arlington, VA 22217	1
20.	Henry Jones, LT, USN, Code 63 Department of Meteorology Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	1

Ē

Ŕ

